
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 21 April 2017

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
On: Tuesday 2 May 2017 At: 2.00 pm

Venue: Town Hall, Bideford

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillor B Boundy (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: J Himan, K James, D Brenton and R Julian

Non Elected Member: Alastair C Ashworth

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.  Minutes (Pages 4 - 10)
Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on 14 February 2017.

3.  Declaration of Interests 
Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered.

4.  Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II 

5.  Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair 



- 2 -

6.  Draft Annual Governance Statement (Pages 11 - 21)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.

7.  Review of Governance Evidence - Principle F1 (Pages 22 - 24)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.

8.  Changes To Accounting Policies (Pages 25 - 39)
To receive a report from the Finance Manager.

9.  Going Concern Report (Pages 40 - 44)
To receive a report from the Strategic Manager (Resources).

10.  2017/18 Annual Fee Letter (Pages 45 - 48)
To receive the report of Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

11.  Grant Thornton Update Report (Pages 49 - 60)
To receive the report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

12.  External Audit Plan (Pages 61 - 83)
To receive the report of Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

13.  Internal Audit Plan (Pages 84 - 98)
To receive a report from the Service Improvement Officer.

14.  Audit Together Update (Pages 99 - 104)
To receive a report from the DAP Partnership Manager.

15.  Audit Reports Issued to Date (Pages 105 - 108)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.

16.  Progress with Agreed Actions (Pages 109 - 114)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.

17.  Appointment Of External Auditors From 2018/2019 
To receive verbal updates from the Strategic Manager (Resources).

18.  Update On Partnership Arrangements With DAP 
To receive a verbal update from the Strategic Manager (Resources).



- 3 -

19.  Forward Plan (Page 115)

20.  Corporate Assurance Risk Register - March 2017 (Pages 116 - 126)
To receive a report from the Strategic Manger (Resources).

21.  Part II (Closed Session) 

22.  Corporate Assurance Risk Register - Part 2 Items - March 2017 (Pages 127 - 131)
To receive a report from the Strategic Manager (Resources).

Meeting Organiser: Mary Richards – Democratic Services



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Tuesday, 14 February 2017 - 2.00 pm

PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillors J Himan, K James, D Brenton and R Julian

Mr A Ashworth - Non-elected Representative

ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources)
M Bartlett - Grant Thornton Audit Manager
R Hutchins - Devon Audit Partnership Manager
C Dobbs - Service Improvement Officer
M Richards - Democratic Services Officer
R Bonaparte - Business Transformation Manager
D Green - Planning Manager

APOLOGIES There were no apologies

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

36. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2016 were presented. 

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor James and –

Resolved:

That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

(Vote: For - unanimous)

37.   ACTION LIST 

The Action List was reviewed and it was noted that no follow up action was 
required in relation to the Audit Committee Meeting at Plymouth City Council.

Minute 27 

The Chair confirmed he spoke regularly with Grant Thornton and would bring items 
for consideration by Full Council as and when appropriate.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



2

38.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 
the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion.

39.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

The agenda as circulated was agreed.

40.   URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR 

There were no urgent matters brought forward.

41.   CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised that the Risk Management Group had 
not yet met as today’s was an additional Audit & Governance meeting.  The next 
Risk Management meeting was due to take place next week.

An update was provided for risks which had seen changes since the last meeting.  
It was noted that:

 Reports on the budget had been presented to the Community & Resources 
and Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committees and would be going to Full 
Council on 27 February 2017.

 The Operational Management Team was taking part in Health & Safety 
Training.

42.   FASTER CLOSEDOWN OF ACCOUNTS 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised that to accommodate the requirement 
for a faster closedown of accounts, the external audit process would also need to 
be brought forward.  Early works have already commenced and an interim audit 
would be taking place next week.

The Audit Manager, Grant Thornton, referred Members to the summary papers 
distributed and highlighted the key elements for faster closedown, which were 
having the right systems and processes in place; audits and all parties working 
together.  He made reference to a series of workshops which had taken place and 
how the information gained had provided a basis, although not definitive, as the 
process would be influenced by capacity, systems etc.

In future, Members would see a higher level of estimates in the draft accounts and 
bigger differences between estimates and the final position.  However, it was 
something people would soon get to used.

Concerns were raised regarding increased risk.  The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) responded that discussions were taking place with the auditors to 

Page 5



3

mitigate any risk.  Grant Thornton’s Audit Manager added that there would be more 
regular hard closedowns and historical events and trends would also be used.

The Strategic Manager (Resources) acknowledged the Members’ wish to see an 
update being brought back regularly to the Audit & Governance Committee.

The DAP Partnership Manager wished to raise awareness that extra pressure 
would be put on the External Auditors.  Grant Thornton’s Audit Manager explained 
that their approach was to bring forward as much work as possible, and indeed this 
had been happening over the past 2 years, and then to top-off in the Summer.  It 
was anticipated that additional pressure would be felt by Grant Thornton at the end 
of July when all councils would want to schedule meetings.

43.   ANNUAL CERTIFICATION LETTER 

The Annual Certification Letter was presented, representing the final piece of work 
for 2015/16 and relating to Housing Benefits Subsidy Claim.  It was noted that there 
were no amendments, no qualifications and no incidents triggering 40+ testing.

The letter was noted.

44.   ANTI FRAUD, CORRUPTION & BRIBERY POLICY AND WHISTLEBLOWING 
POLICY 

The Service Improvement Officer presented the combined report on Anti Fraud, 
Corruption & Bribery and Whistleblowing policies.  The documents had last been 
approved in 2014 and Members’ agreement was now being sought that the 
updated documents were fit for purpose.  The Service Improvement Officer 
highlighted the changes, adding that there were no fundamental changes.

Assurance was sought that the policies followed Local Government Association 
polices.  It was confirmed that the policies were originally based on CIPFA 
templates, written approximately. 5-6 years ago and most councils had adopted 
these models.  The DAP Partnership Manager stated that the updated policies had 
been sent to the Devon Audit Partnership who had made sure they contained all 
the key elements and he further confirmed nothing was amiss.  

During the ensuing discussions the following points were raised:

 It was felt that Unions should be added to the list of external bodies available 
to officers as they provided a vital role in terms of anonymity and distance.

 Whistleblowing Policy – Elected Members should also be a point of contact 
for officers.

 More emphasis should be put on the Council’s zero-tolerance approach.
 Points 5.8 and 5.15 – Reference should be made to the involvement of the 

Audit & Governance Committee, timescales/qualification and how the 
process worked.

 Point 7.6 – How independent is the Investigating Officer?
 Point 8.2 - In response to a query about evidence of training, the Service 

Improvement Officer referred to the Officers’ Guide to Whistleblowing, which 

Page 6



4

is regularly updated and given to all employees as well as induction training 
which is undertaken by all new starters.

 The Service Improvement Officer confirmed that the Human Resources 
Department held records of whistleblowing and that whistleblowers were 
offered anonymity and protection.

 It was important to highlight that anybody aware of anything reportable must 
report the incident, otherwise they would be complicit.

 Confirmation was given that there was a process for handling incidents of 
vexatious whistleblowing. 

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor James and –

Resolved: That the updated Anti Fraud, Corruption & Bribery Policy and Strategy 
and the updated Whistleblowing Policy be approved subject to the following 
amendments:

 Ensure clear reference be made in the policies that staff have the option to 
go to:

 the Union
 Elected Members

 More emphasis should be put on the Council’s zero-tolerance approach.
 Points 5.8 and 5.15 – Reference should be made to the involvement of the 

Audit & Governance Committee, timescales/qualification and how the 
process worked.

 Clear reference be made that anybody aware of anything reportable must 
report the incident, otherwise they would be complicit.

 (Vote: For – unanimous)

Councillor Brenton left the meeting.

45.   AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE 

The DAP Partnership Manager presented the report which contained details of 11 
audits which had been published since the last meeting. The audits reported were: 
Safeguarding, Section 106 (Follow-Up to previous audit), Travel and Subsistence, 
Culture and Ethics, Planning Enforcement, Main Accounting, NNDR, Insurance, 
Creditor, Register of Interests and Payroll.

The Committee was informed of the controls in place and the summary of the findings 
for each audit.

With reference to the Safeguarding audit, a consideration was raised that 5 out 9 
controls being met and equating to a “satisfactory” opinion and then being perceived by 
the Customer Support Manager as a positive audit surely gave rise to increased risk.  
The Strategic Manager (Resources) stated that safeguarding presented a significant 
risk to all authorities, however meetings with safeguarding boards and leaders had 
been taking place.

Page 7



5

In response to an observation that there had been a lot of debate over S106 
agreements, the Planning Manager advised that a lot of work had been completed in 
relation to documentation and record keeping.  Planning enforcement and affordable 
housing were discussed.  A recommendation was made that enforcement should be 
red-flagged and warranted a separate audit.

The Service Improvement advised that a quarterly report in relation to Local 
Government Ombudsman complaints was sent to all Councillors via the Members’ 
Bulletin.  Members were also informed that there were no governance issues brought 
to the ombudsman which had been investigated.  It was noted that the Service 
Improvement Officer and the Chair will meet quarterly to review whether any LGO 
complaints needed to be raised at Audit & Governance.

A question was asked regarding supplier accounts which have not been used for some 
time.  The Strategic Manager (Resources) will investigate and liaise with the Chair,

It was proposed by Mr Ashworth, seconded by Councillor Himan and –

Resolved:

That the reports be noted.

(Vote: For - unanimous)

46.   REVIEW OF GOVERNANCE EVIDENCE - PRINCIPLE B2 

The Service Improvement Officer confirmed the requirement of the Accounts & 
Audit (England) Regulations 2015 to review at least once a year the effectiveness 
of the Council’s control environment and to publish this in the Annual Governance 
Statement.  

Examples, updated with actions, were presented in relation to Principle B.2, 
Engaging Comprehensively With Institutional Stakeholders. 

It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Julian and – 

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

(Vote: For unanimous)

47.   GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT 

The Engagement Manager, Grant Thornton, provided a progress report on the 
Housing Benefits Subsidy Claim 2015/2016, together with 2016/17 work, which 
included fee letter; accounts audit plan and interim accounts audit.  He gave details 
of changes to the 2016/17 CIPFA Code and advised Committee Members that the 
primary statement would look a little different and would resemble the quarterly 
monitoring reports, for example.

Page 8



6

A further change would be a move away from historic financial reporting to a more 
progressive and forward looking style.  The Engagement Manager, Grant Thornton, 
highlighted some of the future considerations for Torridge District Council, such as 
the Apprentice Levy, Salary Sacrifice and Brexit.

The Joint Venture Seminar was discussed.  Grant Thornton to consider opening 
future seminars up to a wider audience.

Members noted the report.

48.   FORWARD PLAN 

The Forward Plan was considered and updated, to include :

April 2017 Add Faster Closedown Of Accounts
Remove External Auditors

Other Items Governance Training to be rescheduled for 2007/18

49.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

It was proposed by Councillor Julian, seconded by Councillor James and – 

Resolved:

That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of 
the likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and  
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

(Vote: For unanimous)

  PART II (CLOSED SESSION)

50.  AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE - CYBER SECURITY AUDIT 

The DAP Partnership Manager outlined the nature and outcome of the ICT Cyber 
Security 2016/17 audit report which included information pertaining to potential 
weaknesses relating to ICT controls in place which maintain the security of the 
Authority’s ICT systems.

The Business Transformation Manager gave a more detailed history and the 
actions which had been taken subsequently to mitigate the risk identified.

The report was noted.

It was proposed by Councillor Julian, seconded by Councillor Himan and – 

Page 9



7

Resolved:

That the press and public be readmitted.

(Vote: For – unanimous)

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 4.21 pm.

Chair: Date:

Page 10



REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Draft Annual Governance Statement
Date: 18th April 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To provide an opportunity for Members to comment on the draft 2016/17 Annual Governance 
Statement.

 
1. INTRODUCTION

Paragraph 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2016) requires the Council to conduct a 
review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its control environment and to publish this in 
the Annual Governance Statement.

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance which was last 
approved by the Audit & Governance Committee on 29 November 2016.

The Annual Governance Statement should be a holistic assessment of the check and balance 
arrangements that are in place to ensure that public money is properly spent and compliance 
with the principles for the conduct of individuals in public life.

Members are asked to review and comment on the draft 2016/17 Annual Governance 
Statement set out at Appendix A. The Annual Governance Statement will then be updated and 
presented for approval to the Audit & Governance Committee on 11 July 2017.

2. REPORT

The Council’s aim is to produce an Annual Governance Statement which complies with 
published guidelines, is easy to read and is as succinct as possible. Ideally we would like our 
Annual Governance Statement to be ‘best practise’.   

The draft report is attached to this report as Appendix A.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
There is a legal requirement to publish an Annual Governance Statement as part of the 
approval of the annual statement of accounts.

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications.

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
N/A

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
Evidence to support the Annual Governance Statement has been and will continue to be 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. This will include reviews of the Council’s governance and risk 
management arrangements. Any significant areas for improvement will be set out in the 
action plan.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Reviewing the effectiveness of the control environment and reporting on the findings of the 
review is a key aspect of demonstrating that Torridge District Council has a formal and 
established response to the Corporate Governance requirements.

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Chair of Audit & Governance, Councillor Philip Hackett said ‘The purpose of the AGS is to 
confirm that the Council’s business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper 
standards, and that public money allocated to it is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and 
used economically, efficiently and effectively. This year’s AGS demonstrates that this 
approach has been robustly pursued at Torridge to ensure we have satisfactory outcomes 
and comply with legislation.’  

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Draft Annual Governance Statement is provided for consideration by Members and will 
be updated in July 2017. It will include an action plan to address any significant weaknesses 
highlighted by the Senior Managers Service Assurance Statements, the Audit Manager’s 
Opinion, and through the reviews of the AGS evidence database.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members consider the draft Annual Governance Statement and bring forward 
suggestions for discussion.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Governance Manager
Statutory Finance Officer
Head of Paid Service
Monitoring Officer
Councillor Philip Hackett
DAP Partnership Manager

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer

Background Papers: Code of Governance 2017

Page 12



Draft 1 - April 2017

Annual Governance Statement

2016/17

P
age 13



2

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating 

strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law

B. Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement

C. Defining outcomes in 

terms of sustainable 

economic, social, and 

environmental benefits

E. Developing the entity’s 

capacity, including the 

capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it 

D. Determining the 

interventions necessary to 

optimise the achievement 

of the intended outcomes

G. Implementing good practices in 

transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver 

effective accountability

F.  Managing risks and performance 

through robust internal control and strong 

public financial management

This image cannot currently be displayed. The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with 

the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and Society of 

Local Authority Chief Executive’s (SOLACE) Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016. This statement explains how Torridge has 

complied with the code and also how we meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2016, which requires all relevant bodies to prepare an Annual Governance Statement.

A copy of the Council’s code is 

available on our website at 

www.torridge.gov.uk

or can be obtained from the 

Governance Manager, 

Riverbank House, Bideford, 
Devon  EX39 2QG

This image cannot currently be displayed.

The Code of Governance sets out the principles of good   

governance and describes the arrangements the Council

has  put in place to meet each of these principles:

Torridge District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 

with the law and proper standards, and that public money allocated to it is safeguarded, properly 

accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty 

under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement 

in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible 

for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 

exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the management of risk.

Scope of 

Responsibility 

P
age 14



The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by which 

the Council directs and controls its activities, and how it leads, engages with and accounts to the 

community it serves. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives 

and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective 

services. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage 

risk to an acceptable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the Council’s aims and 

objectives, but it seeks to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

The system of internal control is based on an on going process designed to identify, prioritise and 

manage the risks to the achievement of the Council’s aims and objectives.

The governance framework has been in place at Torridge District Council for the year 

ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual statement of accounts. 

The Council’s Governance Framework addresses the way the Council is controlled and 

managed, both strategically and operationally, and how it will deliver its services. The 

Framework recognises that the Council’s business is focussed upon its corporate priorities and 

seeks to facilitate delivery to our local communities of the goals set out in the Strategic Plan. 

The structures and processes, risk management and other internal control systems, such as 

standards of conduct, form part of this Framework, which is about managing the barriers to 

achieving the Council’s objectives.

The local Code of Corporate Governance is reviewed annually through the Audit and 

Governance Committee. This last happened on 29 November  2016. Members and senior 

officers are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of the 

Council’s affairs and the stewardship of the resources at its disposal.  This task is managed by 

the Strategic Management Team (SMT) which comprises the Head of Paid Service (HOPS), 

Strategic Managers and Senior Solicitor.

The Council has designed systems and processes to regulate, monitor and control its activities 

in order to achieve its vision and objectives. The Code of Corporate Governance sets out the 

controls in full.
3

The Purpose of 

the Governance 

Framework

The 

Governance 

Framework

P
age 15



Code of Corporate Governance
(The Council’s commitment to good governance based on the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework)

Monitoring Officer
(Legal & Ethical Assurance)

Governance Manager
(Challenge Governance Statement etc.)

Sn151Officer
(Promote & Deliver Good Financial Management)

Annual Governance Statement
(Meets Account & Audit Regulations and is published with Annual Accounts)

Constitution

Code of Conduct

Scheme of 

Delegation

Complaints Process

Equality & Diversity

Financial Management 

Framework

Budget Monitoring 

Process

Compliance with CIPFA 

Guidelines

HR Policies

Pay Policy

Risk Management 

Complaints

Summary

Reports

Corporate 

Risk 

Register

Annual Audit 

Letters 

(External)

Local Government 

Ombudsman Report

Statement of 

Accounts

Standards 

Committee

Strategic Plan

Policies & Procedures

Business Planning

Performance Results

Partnership Protocol

Audit & Governance Committee
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence. Approve AGS)

Head of Paid Service & Strategic Management Team
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence)

Governance

Framework

Financial & Contract 

Procedure Rules

Medium 

Term 

Financial 

Strategy

Treasury & 

Investment 

Strategy

Whistleblowing Policy

Personal Appraisals

Public

Consultations

Annual Audit 

Opinion (Int)

Quarterly 

Business 

Report

Scrutiny 

Committee

(Internal)

Manager’s

Assurance 

Statements

Scrutiny 

Committee

(External)

Committee 

Reports

Service

Risk 

Registers

Bribery, Anti-Fraud & 

Corruption Policy

P
age 16



The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of 

its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is 

informed by:

� the work of the Governance Team who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the governance environment; 

� the Annual Internal Audit Assurance opinion, as provided by the Devon Audit Partnership; 

� comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates; and

� the Audit & Governance Committee review that the elements of the governance framework 

are in place and effective, to ensure compliance with the principles. They also reviewed the 

system of internal audit and concluded it was effective and remained a key source of 

assurance for the Council in 2016/17. 

The Standards Committee has monitored standards of 

conduct of Members and advised the Council on probity 

issues. Entries made in the Register of Members’ Interests 

were reviewed by the Monitoring Officer.

The Council’s Senior Managers have completed assurance 

statements for each of their areas of control, acknowledging 

responsibility for risk management and internal control, and 

certifying satisfaction with the arrangements in place 

throughout 2016/17. 

Other key officers have also been consulted for their 

views on the standards of governance within the Council 

– specifically the

� Statutory Finance Officer, 

� Monitoring Officer,

� Governance Manager, and 

� DAP Partnership Manager. 

The Council’s Monitoring Officer has a legal responsibility to 

look into matters of potential unlawfulness within the 

Council. In 2016/17 the Monitoring Officer continued his 

review of the efficiency and effectiveness of all 

arrangements relating to Council and Committee meetings, 

working groups, and the required officer support. 

The Performance Management Framework has operated 

effectively during the year. Monitoring information on key 

areas of performance has been provided to the 

Governance Team for review and action. Performance 

management outputs have also been reviewed by the 

Overview & Scrutiny (Internal) Committee.

In 2016/17 the Council responded to 66 stage 1 and 19 

stage 2 formal customer complaints, with an average 

response time of 19 days (the service standard is 28 

days). The Council identified some learning outcomes 

from the complaints received and these have already 

been incorporated into changes in service provision.
5

In accordance with section 3.7 of the Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting for 2016/17, Torridge’s financial 

management arrangements conform with the governance 

requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the 

CFO in Local Government (2010).

Review of 

Effectiveness

P
age 17



Monitoring Reports from Key Partnerships and other External Bodies including:

� North Devon Plus        � Westward Housing (Tarka) � Community Safety Partnership

� CAB � North Devon’s Biosphere Reserve, AONB        � Northern Devon Healthcare Trust 

� SWW / EA � Health, Wellbeing and Social Care � Burton Art Gallery

Reviewing Actions on Officer Reports

� Council Tax Support Scheme

� Quarterly Business Reports

� New Homes Bonus

� Transforming Torridge Programme 

� Budget Challenge & MTFP

Service Reviews

� Section 205 Notices

� Section 106 process

� Scheme of Officer Delegation

� ModernGov Software

� Highways Issues/Bridgeland St.

Working Parties on

� Income Generation

� Harbour Board

� External Grants

� Water Quality

The Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committee process has provided challenge and has monitored 

the Council’s policies and performance on an ongoing basis. Lead Members have also kept issues 

under review during meetings with managers. During 2016/17 the Members of O&S, both Internal 

and External, have worked together, adopting a non-political approach, developing and using their 

knowledge and expertise, and that of others to the best effect. An evidence-based approach to the 

O&S work has been instrumental in achieving good results.  There have been contributions, and 

input, from a range of stakeholders, including public and voluntary sector organisations, the public, 

officers and Members of the Council. Highlights have included: 

The Council is dedicated to ensuring that its resources are utilised in the most 

effective and efficient manner whilst delivering continuous improvement. Following 

the approval by Full Council of the Transforming Torridge programme, work has been 

carried out under four major work streams: accommodation; customer first; locality 

working; and business transformation. The end result will include the relocation of the 

majority of staff to a single site during 2017/18. In addition officers have acted on 

feedback from Internal and External audit; and fed back customer complaints to the 

appropriate Operational Managers to improve service delivery.

The Council has in place regular 

reporting arrangements on the 

financial affairs of the Council. The 

budget for 2016/17 was agreed by 

Full Council in February 2016 and 

financial performance was reported 

on a quarterly basis to Members.

6

Updates on Key Projects

There is a standing item on the O&S (Internal) agenda to review the progress of the Transforming Torridge Programme. Project 

updates are also provided at the weekly Strategic Management Team meetings. 

Review of 

Effectiveness

P
age 18



The Code of Governance was updated to give assurance 

that standards were met in key areas. The 2017 Code 

was approved by the Audit and Governance Committee in 

November 2016.  

In August 2016 the Council’s external auditor (Grant 

Thornton) provided the Council with an unqualified 

opinion on the Council’s accounts within their Annual 

Audit and Inspection letter (see pages 97-99 in the 

Council’s 2015/16 financial statement). Grant Thornton 

also provided an unqualified opinion of the Council’s 

arrangements to secure Value For Money. 

Based on the assurance work undertaken by Internal 

Audit, the Audit Manager (DAP) has provided an opinion 

on the adequacy of the control environment which 

concluded that this was (TO BE REPORTED IN JULY). It 

should, however, be noted that all risks of failure cannot 

be eliminated, and the assurance given is therefore 

reasonable and not absolute. Isolated areas in which 

controls were below the required standard are reported 

initially to the relevant Strategic Manager who ensures 

prompt corrective action is taken, and ultimately to the 

A&G Committee who monitor progress with 

improvements via follow up reports from Internal Audit.

In March 2017 Torridge had its second Corporate Peer 

Challenge; one of the five core elements was 

Organisational leadership and governance: Is there 

effective political and managerial leadership supported by 

good governance and decision-making arrangements that 

respond to key challenges and enable change and 

transformation to be implemented? The Review Team 

concluded that Torridge’s Governance arrangements were 

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

Internal Audit assessed corporate governance 

arrangements by measuring the Council against the 

requirements of the governance framework outlined in the 

CIPFA / SOLACE publication “Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government”, and the results of this 

have been reported to the Audit and Governance 

Committee. In December 2016 DAP underwent an 

external examination against the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards (PSIAS) and received the top rating.

In the 2015/16 Annual Governance Statement, three key 

issues were identified. Two of the three agreed actions 

have been completed; the remaining action (the Local 

Plan) was submitted to the Secretary of State in May 

2016 – hearings were held in December 2016 and a re-

submission is expected in July 2017.  

All key systems were audited in 2016/17 and a total of 22 

audit reports were provided to management and the A&G 

Committee. This included an audit of the Council’s Risk 

Management arrangements (the audit opinion was 

Satisfactory?) which confirmed that: they have been 

monitored throughout the year by the Strategic 

Management Team; are closely aligned with day to day 

operations; and are linked with strategic and operational 

objectives. During 2016/17 a separate Risk Management 

Group was re-established and carried out a full review of 

the Corporate and Operational Risk Registers. 

7

Review of Effectiveness

P
age 19



8

This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is stressed that no system of 

control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. In concluding this 

overview of the Council’s governance arrangements, XX issues have been identified that need to 

be addressed to ensure continuous improvement in the Governance Framework. The aim is to 

address these weaknesses during the 2017/18 financial year, by way of an action plan for 

improving the governance framework and system of internal control. This will be subject to 

regular monitoring by the Committee.

Issue 

No.

Issue Identified Summary of Action Proposed

Significant 

Governance 

Issues

P
age 20



9

Through the action referred to on the previous page, we propose over the coming year to 

address the issues that have been identified, with a view to further enhancing our governance 

arrangements. These steps will identify improvements that are needed and we will monitor their 

implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed: …………………………………………………………. Date:  ………………………………….

Councillor Philip Hackett

Chair of Audit & Governance Committee

Signed: ……………………………………………………...

Date: ………………………………….

Steve Hearse

Statutory Finance Officer 

Signed: ……………………………………………………... Date: ……………………………………

Councillor Jane Whittaker

Leader of the Council

Signed: ……………………………………………………... Date: ……………………………………

Jenny Wallace

Head of Paid Service

Approval of the 

Annual 

Governance 

Statement

P
age 21



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit and Governance Committee
Subject: AGS - Review of Evidence
Date: 18th April 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To satisfy the Committee that the AGS Supporting Evidence reflects the governance framework

1. INTRODUCTION
Paragraph 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2016 requires the Council to 
conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its control environment and to 
publish this in the Annual Governance Statement.

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance which was last 
approved by Audit & Governance Committee on 29th November 2016.  

The Annual Governance Statement was approved by Audit & Governance Committee on 19th 
July 2016. 

A process is in place for Members of the Committee to review the evidence to support the 
Statement on a rolling basis. 

2. REPORT

At the meeting on 29th November 2016 it was agreed that the Council should continue to look at 
governance evidence topics on a random basis, chosen by the Chair prior to each meeting. The 
Chair has chosen principle F1 for review at the meeting on the 18th April 2017.

Principle F is about Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 
strong public financial management. Section F1 is about Managing Risk.

A copy of this section of the database is included in Appendix A and Members are invited 
either before, during or any time after the meeting, to select items for further interrogation, to 
satisfy themselves that the evidence accurately reflects the governance framework.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications

There is a legal requirement as part of approval of the annual statement of accounts

Financial Implications

None

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



Human Resources Implications

None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications

N/A

Equality/Diversity

Equality Impact Assessment prepared

Risk Management

The evidence supporting the Annual Governance Statement reviews the Council’s 
governance arrangements including risk management and identifies areas for improvement 
that are identified in the action plan.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies

Approval and adoption of the Annual Governance Statement is a key aspect of demonstrating 
that Torridge District Council has undertaken an annual review of its governance framework

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Consultation date – Chair of A&G, Councillor Philip Hackett, on 31st March 2017.

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Committee having reviewed the evidence to support the Annual Governance Statement 
will then make suggestions to address any areas identified for improvement.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:

 The evidence contained in section F1 of the supporting database be noted.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace, Head of Paid Service
Jamie Hollis, Monitoring Officer
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance Officer
Councillor Philip Hackett

Contact Officers: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer

Background Papers: Supporting Database

Page 23



AGS EVIDENCE DATABASE 2016/17 - PRINCIPLE F1

Suggested systems, processes and documentation
to demonstrate compliance

2016/17 
Evidence of TDC Compliance

Action Req. 
(Y/N)

100%

Risk Management and "Horizon Scanning" are a standing 
item of the SMT agenda.

All Committee reports include a Risk Management section 
to ensure this is considered during the decision making 
process 
Example C&R Report - August 2016

The Risk Strategy outlines RM roles and responsibilities 
for Officers and Members; the Risk Management process 
provides guidance to managers.   Both documents were 
reviewed/updated in June 2015.

RM Strategy June15

RM Process June15

A Risk Management Group meets on a regular basis and 
challenges the Corporate Risk Register and Operational 
Risk Registers, ensuring agreed actions are on target 

Example RMG Minutes

The Corporate Risk Register is a standing item on the 
A&G Agenda

Example A&G Agenda

Operational Risk Registers have been integrated into the 
Business Plans to ensure that risks are considered and 
updated as part of the annual business planning process.

Governance - Business Plan 2016-19

Roles and Responsibilities of Members and Officers for 
managing risks are detailed in the Constitution 

Constitution

Risk Registers describe risks and assign owners and 
responsible officers are assigned for risk actions. 

Example Service Risk Register - Customer Support

F1.3 Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual 
risks are clearly allocated. 

Risk Management protocol

Risk Management strategy/policy formally approved 
and adopted and reviewed and updated on a regular 
basis

Implementing robust and integrated risk 
management arrangements and ensuring that they 
are working effectively

F1.2

PRINCIPLE F

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

The Local Code should reflect the requirement
of local authorities to:

F1 Managing risk

Recognising  that risk management is an integral 
part of all activities and must be considered in all 
aspects of decision making

Risk Management protocolF1.1

P
age 24



Notes to the accounts

1. Accounting Policies

General principles

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16  
(issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) supported by 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The Accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified for the 
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

Accruals of income and expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular:

Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the 
Council provides the relevant goods or services.

Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed.

Expenses in relation to services received are recorded as expenditure when the services are 
received.

Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for in the year to 
which it relates on the basis of the effective interest rate rather than amounts determined by 
the loan or investment agreement.

Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it 
is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge 
made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant service revenue account, 
unless they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure.

A de minimus level of £5,000 is applied to any manual adjustments made

 Exceptions to this principle are electricity and similar quarterly payments 
which are charged in the revenue accounts at the date of meter reading rather 
than being apportioned between financial years. 

 Similarly annual services paid by a single payment are normally debited or 
credited based on the renewal date. The effect of these exceptions is not 
considered material.

 Audit Fees – due to public interest in these disclosures a materiality threshold 
of £1,000 is applied

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



Notes to the accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash represents cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature 
in no more than three months from the date of acquisition. 

In the Cash Flow Statement cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts 
and other debit balances that form part of the Authority’s cash and bank account 
management.

Exceptional items 

When items of income or expenditure are material their nature and amounts are disclosed in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the Notes to the Accounts.

Page 26



Notes to the accounts

Prior period adjustments, changes in Accounting Policies and estimates 
and errors

Where Accounting Policies change or changes are made that correct material errors 
affecting more than one financial year then the comparative figures for the previous financial 
year will normally be restated. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for in the 
current year only and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.  
Charges to revenue for non-current assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the real cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.

Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets where there are no accumulated gains in the 
Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisations. 

However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in 
its overall borrowing requirement calculated in accordance with the policy on minimum 
revenue provision as determined by the Council. Depreciation, impairment losses and 
amortisations are replaced by revenue provision in the Statement of Movement in Reserves, 
by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account for the difference 
between the two.

Employee benefits

Benefits payable during employment

Employee benefits due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end, such as salaries and 
annual leave are recognised in the year in which the employee renders services to the 
Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday and other accrued time, earned by the 
employee but not taken before the year end. The accrual is made at the estimated payment 
rate applicable in the following financial year. The accrual is charged to the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services but, then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves 
Statement so that the benefits are charged in the year in which they occur.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision 
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate 
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund to be charged with the amount payable to the pension fund in the 
year. The notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits charged 

Page 27



Notes to the accounts
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are removed in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and replaced with the debits for the cash amounts payable to the 
pension fund and pensioners for the year.

Page 28



Notes to the accounts
Post employments benefits

Employees of the Council are eligible to be members of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme administered by Peninsula Pensions on behalf of Devon County Council.

This scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

The liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance 
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the 
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by 
the employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and 
projections of earnings for current employees.

The pension liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices.  

The attributable assets of the pension scheme are measured at fair value:

- Quoted securities at current bid price.

- Unquoted securities at professional estimates.

- Unitised securities at current bid price.

- Property at market value.

The change in the net pensions’ liability is analysed into the following components:

Current service cost is the increase in liabilities arising from the service earned this year – 
charged in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the service for which 
the employee worked.
 
Past service cost is the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions but relates to 
service earned in earlier years – debited to the Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for the 
authority – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises 
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  This is calculated by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the period to the net defined benefit liability(asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into 
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result 
of contribution and benefit payments.

Re-measurements comprising:

The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure.

Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 

Page 29



Notes to the accounts
actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Contributions paid to the pension fund – is the cash paid as employer’s contributions to the 
pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to 
be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to 
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to 
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement 
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners 
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises 
on the Pension reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being 
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits 
are earned by employees.

Discretionary benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits 
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to 
any employee are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for 
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Events after the reporting period

If a significant event occurs after the date of the Balance Sheet, but before the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue, it will be shown by way of a note. An event will be 
considered significant if it is material and failure to mention it would mislead anyone reading 
the financial statements.

Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value 
and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable 
are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective interest rate for 
the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts future cash payments 
over the life of the instrument to the amount that was originally recognised. 

For most borrowings this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
principal outstanding; and the interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan 
agreement.Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into two types:

 Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not 
quoted in an active market.

Page 30



Notes to the accounts

 Available for sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have 
fixed or determinable payments.

Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at amortised cost. 
Annual Credits to the Financing and Investment Income line of the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the 
asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.

Available for sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair 
value. Where the asset has a fixed or determinable payment then the annual credit to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective 
interest rate. Where there is no fixed or determinable payment then income is credited when 
it becomes receivable by the Council. Instruments with quoted market prices are included in 
the Balance Sheet at the market price. Where fair value cannot be measured reliably then it 
is included at cost (less any impairment losses).

Government Grants and Contributions

Government grants and third party contributions are recognised as due when there is 
reasonable assurance that the Council will comply with conditions attached to the payment 
and that it will be received. Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which 
conditions have not been satisfied are carried on the Balance Sheet as creditors. When 
conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line or 
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.

Capital grants credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where 
the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Reserve.  Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to 
the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Heritage Assets

These are assets that have historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 
environmental qualities and are held for their contribution to knowledge and culture. These 
assets are recognised and measured at one of three values:

A valuation provided by a professional Valuer and Auctioneer. 

Assets acquired between revaluations are valued at cost.

Insurance valuation.

Heritage Assets are not normally subject to depreciation, but will be reviewed periodically for 
impairment due to deterioration or damage.

Intangible Assets

Page 31



Notes to the accounts

Expenditure on assets that do not have a physical substance but which are identified and 
controlled by the Council is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or 
service potential will flow to the Council for more than one financial year. Intangible assets 
are capitalised at cost and are only revalued where the fair value of the assets held by the 
Council can be determined by reference to an active market. Intangible assets are amortised 
over their estimated useful economic lives and debited to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Inventories and Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and will be only be considered for 
inclusion where their value exceeds £10,000. The Council does not operate long term 
contracts of any significant value and purchases are charged to the revenue cost of service 
in the year of receipt.
 
Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are held solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the 
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured at fair value based on the highest and best price at 
which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. 
Properties are not depreciated but revalued annually according to market conditions at year-
end. Gains and losses on revaluation and on disposal are posted to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Statutory arrangements do not permit revaluation and disposal gains and losses 
to have an impact on the General Fund Balance and hence are reversed out of the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account or Usable Capital Receipts Reserve (for any sales proceeds greater than £10,000).

Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets

Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with 
other ventures that involve the use of assets and resources of the ventures rather than the 
establishment of a separate entity. The Council operates the North Devon Crematorium 
jointly with North Devon District Council. The Council recognises 40% of the assets, liabilities 
and reserves on its Balance Sheet and 40 % of income and expenditure on its 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. North Devon District Council 
recognises the other 60% share.

Leases

Leases are classed as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease 
covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately 
for classification.

Page 32



Notes to the accounts
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement 
is dependant on the use of specific assets.

Finance Leases

Property, plant and equipment held under a finance lease is recognised on the Balance 
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value or if lower, at the present value of 
the minimum lease payments. The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the 
obligation to pay the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between a charge for the 
acquisition of the interest in the property plant and equipment, which is applied to write down 
the lease liability, and a finance charge.

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under a finance lease is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the 
lease term. The Council is not required to meet the cost of depreciation on leased assets, 
but makes a prudent contribution in accordance with its policy and Minimum Revenue 
Provision. Depreciation is substituted by a revenue contribution from the General Fund 
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where the Council grants an operating lease the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. 
Rental income is credited on a straight line basis to the relevant service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Oerheads and Support Services

For 2016/17, the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CIES) reflects the 
Council’s internal financial reporting arrangements, in previous financial years it followed the 
CIPFA costing principles of the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP).

 The Council’s internal reporting arrangements to committees exclude the allocation of 
overheads and support services between Council functions. The Expenditure and Funding 
note shows the movement from the internal management reporting arrangement to the CIES 
on a proper accounting basis. 
Accounting for Local Tax

Non Domestic Information (NDR)

Retained Business  Rate income included within the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure  
statement (CIES) for the year will be treated as accrued income.

Council Tax

Council Tax income included in the CIES for the year will be treated as accrued income.

Page 33



Notes to the accounts
Both NDR and Council Tax will be recognised in the CIES in the line Taxation and Non-specific grant 
income. As a billing authority the difference between the NDR and Council Tax included in the CIES 
and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund shall be taken to the 
Collection Fund adjustment account and reported in the Movement in Reserves statement.  

Each major preceptor’s share of the accrued NDR and Council Tax income will be available from the 
information  that is required to be produced in order to prepare the Collection Fund Statement. 

Revenue relating to such items as Council Tax, rates etc shall be measured at the full amount 
receivable (net of any impairment losses) as they are non-contractual, non exchange transactions 
and there can be no difference between the delivery and payment dates.Property Plant and 
Equipment

Physical assets that are used in the provision of services or for administrative purposes for 
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis. Expenditure that maintains, but does not add 
to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits (e.g. repairs & maintenance) is 
charged to revenue as it is incurred. Expenditure of less than £10,000 would not be 
recognised as capital expenditure but would be charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of Net Cost of Services. However where significant quantities 
of items are acquired at the same time, e.g. personal computers, or the expenditure is 
financed from a capital grant, then it would be capitalised.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs 
attributable to bringing the asset to the condition necessary for it to operate in the required 
manner. The Council does not generally capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are 
under construction. Only assets or assets under construction over £1 million, funded by 
internal borrowing, will have interest added to the capital project, calculated at the average 
rate of interest available to the Council. 

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.

Infrastructure assets are carried at depreciated historic cost. 

Community assets and assets under construction are carried at historic cost. All other assets 
have been included in the Balance Sheet at fair value for its existing use.

Where there is no market based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Revaluations

Page 34



Notes to the accounts
Where an asset is carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value, it is formally revalued at 
intervals of no greater than five years and the revised amount is included in the Balance 
Sheet. The Council has a rolling review of revaluations. Any increase in value from the 
amount at which that asset was included in the Balance Sheet immediately prior to the latest 
revaluation is matched by a credit to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. 
Where a decrease in value is identified then it is accounted for by:

 Writing down the carrying amount up to the amount of previous accumulated gains for the 
asset that are carried in the Revaluation Reserve.

 Writing down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement either the full amount where there is no balance in the 
Revaluation Reserve for the asset or such amount as cannot be met from the balance for 
that asset in the Revaluation Reserve.

The Revaluation Reserve only contains revaluation gains since the 1 April 2007. Gains 
arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Page 35



Notes to the accounts
Impairments

Assets are assessed for impairment at the end of every year. If indications exist that an 
impairment is material then the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where it is 
less than the carrying amount then an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
Impairment losses are accounted for by:

 Writing down the carrying amount up to the amount of previous accumulated gains for the 
asset that are carried in the Revaluation Reserve.

 Writing down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement either the full amount where there is no balance in the 
Revaluation Reserve for the asset or such amount as cannot be met from the balance for 
that asset in the Revaluation Reserve.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of 
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not 
been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets with a determinable 
finite life, by allocating the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet over the periods expected 
to benefit from their use.  Freehold land, Community Assets and Assets Under Construction 
are not depreciated. Where an asset has major components with different estimated useful 
lives, these are depreciated separately. A component is deemed to be one where the 
estimated life of that part of the asset is less than half of the main (host) asset and the 
original or replacement cost is at least 25% of the overall value of the host asset and greater 
than £100,000. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between the 
current value depreciation charged and the depreciation that would have been charged 
based on historical cost being transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital 
Adjustment Account.

Componentisation

The Code requires that each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost 
that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. Within the 
Council’s asset portfolio there are a number of asset classes where componentisation will 
not be considered, including; 

 Equipment – as this is considered immaterial 

 Infrastructure – the adoption of the Code of Practice on Transport Infrastructure Assets in 
2016/17 will require the separate valuation and depreciation of the components of the 
newly created Highways Network Asset 

 Asset classes which are not depreciated – such as land, investment property, Heritage 
Assets, Community Assets, Surplus Assets and Assets Held for Sale. 

Page 36



Notes to the accounts
The remaining assets which are contained with the operational portfolio are often of a 
specialised nature such as leisure centres. The Council requires the Valuers to provide 
component information for each asset which is then reviewed to assess if inclusion of 
different components will have a material impact on depreciation.

Disposals

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered through 
disposal rather than continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. Depreciation 
is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. If assets no longer meet the criteria then they are 
reclassified as non-current assets.

When an asset is disposed of the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is 
written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. Receipts from the disposal are accounted for on an accruals basis 
and credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 
part of the gain or loss on disposal. Amounts received for a disposal of an asset in excess of 
£10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of housing capital receipts is 
required as payment over to Central Government as a "Housing Pooled Capital Receipt" and 
is charged to the Other Operating Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement. The same amount is appropriated from the Usable Capital Receipts 
Reserve and credited to the General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement. The 
balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve and 
may be used to finance capital expenditure or reduce the Council’s underlying need to 
borrow.

Upon disposal, any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Account are transferred to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. The net book value of the asset disposed of is written off 
against the Capital Adjustment Account. It is not a charge against council tax as the cost of 
the non-current asset is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council an obligation 
that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, but where the timing of 
the transfer is uncertain. Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service 
revenue account in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, based on the 
best estimate of the likely settlement at the balance sheet date.  When payments are 
eventually made they are charged to the provision set up in the Balance Sheet.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation that will only be confirmed by the occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise where a provision might be 
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount 
of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the 
Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

Page 37



Notes to the accounts
Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
asset that will only exist after the occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Council. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of 
economic benefits or service potential.

Reserves

The Council sets aside amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts from the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement of Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a 
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service revenue account in that year and 
therefore included in the Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement of Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against the 
council tax for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, 
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council.

Revenue Expenditure Financed from Capital Under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset is charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement in the year. 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost from existing capital resources, a 
transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement 
of Reserves Statement reverses out the amounts charged so there is no impact on the level 
of council tax.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue relating to such things as council tax, business rates, etc shall be measured at the 
full amount receivable (net of any impairment losses) as they are non-contractual, non-
exchange transactions and there can be no difference between the delivery and payment 
dates.

VAT

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Page 38



Notes to the accounts

Page 39



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Strategic Manager Resources
To: Audit & Governance
Subject: Assessment of Going Concern Status
Date: 02 May 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To consider the report of the Strategic Manager – Resources: Torridge s151 Officers’ assessment of 
the Council as a “going concern” for the purpose of preparing the Statement of Accounts for 
2016/17.  

1. INTRODUCTION

This is the first such assessment made by way of a formal report to the Audit & Governance 
Committee prior to the submission of a draft set of accounts for presentation for External 
Audit.

2. REPORT

Following a pro-longed period of austerity, which has led to continued funding reductions 
and budgetary constraint it has become increasingly relevant to consider the concept of 
going concern through an assessment of the Council’s financial position and stability.
The concept of ‘going concern’ itself assumes that an organisation: Torridge District Council, 
its functions and services will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  
The sustained reduction in funding for Local government over the last 6-7 years poses a 
significant threat to the ongoing viability of councils and as a consequence our External 
Auditors are now placing a greater emphasis on our ability to operate under the banner 
‘going concern’.  They are no longer simply checking that our Statement of Accounts are in 
good order and that we are delivering VFM there is now a wider concern about our ability to 
continue to deliver our community obligations and services.
All principal local authorities are required to compile its Statement of Accounts in accordance 
with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting for 2016/17 (the Code) as published 
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). In accordance with 
the Code the Council’s Statement of Accounts are prepared assuming that the Council will 
continue to operate in the foreseeable future and that it is able to do so within the current 
and anticipated resources available. By this, it is meant that the Council will realise its assets 
and settle its obligations in the normal course of business. 

The main factors which underpin this assessment are: 

 The Council’s current financial position; 
 The Council’s projected financial position; 
 The Council’s Balance Sheet; 
 The Council’s cash flow; 
 The Council’s governance arrangements; 
 The regulatory and control environment applicable to the Council as a local authority. 

Page 40

Agenda Item 9



Each of the above is considered in more detail below.

The Council’s Current Financial Position (Revenue)
The latest forecast position reported for 2016/17 as at 31 January 2017 projected a surplus 
of £0.15m This position was after setting aside resources for specific purposes such as the 
Waste Review, Business Rates deficit and additional Planning costs.
As at 31 March 2016 the Council held revenue reserves of £9.7m for specific purposes 
including capital investment projects and a £1.1m uncommitted General Fund balance.  A 
review of financial risks and balances held in reserves is carried out during the budget 
process and when the Statement of Accounts are being prepared.
The Council set a 2017/18 Budget balanced at £10.250m, which included £0.4m being 
allocated from the Transition in Government Funding Reserve (resources set aside to help 
alleviate the impact of reductions in Government funding).  However, it should be noted that 
the Budget 2017/18 does include an overall net movement of £1.2m to reserves with £0.6m 
expected to be released during 2017/18.
It is worth noting that Torridge only utilises 25% (£0.44m) of its annual New Homes Bonus 
funding as an allocation to fund general service revenue expenditure.  Therefore in terms of 
financial resilience this does provide a robust mitigation in terms of the Council’s overall 
funding envelope.

The Council’s Projected Financial Position (Revenue)
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was refreshed and reported to Full 
Council alongside the Budget 2017/18.  The projected net revenue spend of the Council 
reduces from £10.250m in 2017/18 to £9.147m in 2021/22.  
Prepared using the best forecasts available at the time of reporting the overall forecast 
position through to 2021/22 is balanced with a strategic use of the Transition in Government 
Funding Reserve.  However, more importantly the achievement of a balanced position relies 
on the delivery of £0.6m per annum savings from the waste and recycling service review 
scheduled to commence in spring 2018.  The savings forecast from this major service 
review are projected to appear across the 2018/19 and 2019/20 financial years.
Clearly there are major changes afoot in the world of Local Government funding most 
notably the move to 100% Business Rates retention and continued funding reductions.  
However, measures to mitigate the financial impacts facing Torridge have been 
implemented successfully time and time again, which have developed a robust financial 
base Torridge is proud of.

The Council’s Investment (Capital) Programme
Torridge has built up resource capacity to allow the Council to develop an ambitious and 
sizable capital investment programme, which can be balanced around community benefits 
and seeking to generate revenue income from projects implemented.  This has been done 
predominantly following a period of setting aside New Homes Bonus allocations for 
investment purposes rather than simply underpinning the revenue budget.
In 2016/17 the final approved programme consisted of projects and investment amounting 
to almost £5.4m and with £1.3m expended during the year the majority of this underspend 
had already previously been forecast to be rolled forward into 2017/18.
In the 2017/18 round of project submissions 10 projects amounting to investment of £7.9m 
were approved for inclusion in the medium term programme.  In January approval was also 
given for the implementation of a revised waste and recycling service, which included the 

Page 41



relocation of depot facilities with a total budget of £6.7m.  With existing approved schemes 
and those expected to be carried forward into 2017/18 this generates a current medium 
term programme of some £21m.
In addition to the schemes already approved a further 11 schemes were identified for future 
investment totalling £10.2m.  However, whilst the benefits of progressing the schemes were 
highlighted more work on preparing the business case, securing external funding and 
addressing feasibility and capacity issues needs to be developed further first.   
 

The Council’s Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016
The Council’s Statement of Accounts 2016/17 are currently being prepared therefore the 
latest audited Balance Sheet available for assessment is that published for the period as at 
31 March 2016.
In order to determine and reach the conclusion that the Balance Sheet is robust specific 
areas of consideration were identified and reviewed, which were:

 Debts owed to the Council

 Net worth of the Council

 Adequacy of provisions held

 Reserves set aside – either earmarked or not and whether actually committed

 The adequacy of the General Fund Balance to meet unforeseen expenditure.

The Council’s net assets amounted to £11.8m, which is significantly reduced by the inclusion 
of the pension scheme liability of £30.8m.  Contributions to meet this have been increasing 
and increases in contributions have been factored into the MTFS based on recent 
experience.   However, taking a more pragmatic approach the real current net worth could 
be considered the total of usable reserves, which amounted to £12.1m, with a reported 
increase of £2.5m from the period as at 31 March 2015.  Usable reserves consist of Capital 
Receipts Reserve £1.0m, Capital Grants Unapplied £0.1m, Earmarked Reserves £9.9m and 
General Reserve £1.1m.

The Council’s Cash Flow
The Council in accordance with recommended practice and in compliance with its Treasury 
Management Strategy maintains short, medium and longer term cash flow projections. As at 
31 March 2017 the Council held £13.0m in investments.  The entire £13.0m was held in 
highly liquid investments and there were no investments held for longer than a period of 364 
days.  As at 31 March 2017 the Council has £1.2m long term borrowing commitments all 
held with the Public Works Loan Board.

The Council’s Governance Arrangements
The Annual Governance Statement is reviewed taking account of external and internal audit 
reviews.  Statements of assurance in the performance of internal controls and risk are 
sought from the Senior and Operational Management Team.  The effectiveness of the 
Council’s governance arrangements are reviewed via a rolling programme of each of the 
sections of the statement together with the evidence to support it.  This is reviewed by the 
Audit & Governance Committee.  Whilst it is not possible to secure absolute assurance the 
annual review of the statement and the rolling programme of reviewing evidence leads me  
to conclude that the existing arrangements are fit for purpose and provide adequate 
assurance of their effectiveness.

Page 42



The External Regulatory and Control Environment
The Council is required to operate within a highly legislated and controlled environment and 
particular emphasis of this can be exampled and demonstrated with the financial controls in 
place.  Examples of which include the requirement of Full Council to approve a balanced 
annual budget, but within that to consider and have regard via assurance from the s151 
Officer to the robustness of that budget, its estimates and the adequacy of reserves held.  
The control environment extends thereafter to the prescriptive role that External Audit has in 
its auditing of the financial statements, the review of value for money and financial resilience 
and detailed work around subsidy claims. 

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None specific to this report although there is a requirement to produce the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts giving regard to the concept of going concern.
 
Financial Implications
Nothing specific to this report as the report evaluates and assesses the Council’s overall 
financial position, robustness and resilience. 

Human Resources Implications
Nothing specific from this report. 

Sustainability Implications
The report assesses the sustainability of the Council to continue to operate for the 
foreseeable future.

Equality/Diversity
Nothing specific from this report.

Risk Management
The report highlights a number of areas where risks have been considered and actions 
adopted to mitigate financial risk. 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This is associated with Torridge’s Strategic Plan and Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett – 20 April 2017 

I have read the Going Concern report and discussed its content with the Strategic Manager. 
I am satisfied with the information as presented and with the assurance given and endorse 
the report.  

4. CONCLUSIONS

The conclusion reached is that Torridge retains a robust financial position with more than 
adequate arrangements in place to be classed as a “going concern” 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Page 43



That Members of the Committee note the outcome of the assessment made of the Council’s 
status as a “going concern” for the purposes of compiling the draft Statement of Accounts 
2016/17. 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Date of Consultation – 20 April 2017
Officers Consulted – 
Head of Paid Service

Contact Officer: Steve Hearse – Strategic Manager Resources

Background Papers: Budget 2017/18, MTFS and Capital programme 2017/18 – 
2021/22
Statement of Accounts 2015/16
Full Council report – Waste and Recycling Review

Page 44



Page 45

Agenda Item 10



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Audit & Governance Committee 

Torridge District Council

Progress Report and Update 

Year ended 31 March 2017
May 2017

Geraldine Daly

Engagement Lead

T 0117 305 7741

E geri.daly@uk.gt.com

Mark Bartlett

Engagement Manager

T 0117 305 7896

E mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com

Peter Brereton

Executive

T   0117 305 7888

E peter.d.brereton@uk.gt.com

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 11



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Torridge District Council

2© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 50



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Torridge District Council

3© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Introduction

Members of the Audit & Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, 

where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications:

• CFO Insights – reviewing council's 2015/16 spend (December 2016); http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/cfo-

insights-reviewing-councils-201516-spend/

• Fraud risk, 'adequate procedures', and local authorities (December 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/fraud-risk-adequate-procedures-and-local-authorities/

• New laws to prevent fraud may affect the public sector (November 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/new-laws-to-prevent-fraud-may-affect-the-public-sector/

• Brexit: local government – transitioning successfully (December 2016) 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--transitioning-successfully/

• Link to our webinar on the implications of  article 50

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/article-50--what-happened-and-what-does-it-mean/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive

regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement 

Manager.

This paper provides the Audit & Governance Committee 

with a report on progress in delivering our responsibilities 

as your external auditors. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 51

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--transitioning-successfully/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/article-50--what-happened-and-what-does-it-mean/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Torridge District Council

4© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at 7 April 2017

2016/17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments

Fee Letter 
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2016/17' by the 

end of April 2016
April 2016 Yes The 2016/17 fee letter was issued in April 2016.

Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 

Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council's 2016-17 financial statements.

April 2017 Yes The Audit Plan is included on the agenda of this meeting.

Interim accounts audit 
Our interim fieldwork visit plan included:

• updated review of the Council's control environment

• updated understanding of financial systems

• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems

• early work on emerging accounting issues

• early substantive testing

• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment.

Feb – March 2017 Yes
The results of the interim audit are reported in the Audit Plan, which is 

a separate item on the agenda of this meeting.

Final accounts audit
Including:

• audit of the 2016/17 financial statements

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts

• proposed Value for Money conclusion

• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts 

against the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 

the United Kingdom 2016/17  

July – Aug 2017 Not yet due

We will undertake work on your draft financial statements to provide an 

opinion by end of August 2017, in advance of the statutory deadline of 

30 September 2017. The final accounts audit is scheduled to start on 

17 July 2017.

P
age 52



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Torridge District Council

5© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at 7 April 2017

2016/17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion
The scope of our work is unchanged to 2015/16 and is set out in the 
final guidance issued by the National Audit Office in November 
2015. The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the 
Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all significant 
respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it 
took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to 
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 
conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

Feb – July 2017 In progress
The results of our initial risk assessment are reported in our audit plan 
which is included as a separate item on the agenda of this meeting.

Other areas of work 
• Housing benefit subsidy claim

Sept – Nov 2017 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter
A summary of all work completed as part of the 2016/17 audit. October 2017 Not yet due

Other activities
• We held an Income Generation workshop in Exeter on 13 October 2016. The aim of these events is to bring together senior leaders from local government and the private and 

investment sectors to stimulate cross-sector debate and consider current and future funding models. The workshop was attended by your Strategic Manager (Resources).

• We held Faster Close workshops in Bristol and Exeter during October. The workshops were aimed at local authority practitioners and considered the main factors for authorities to 

consider in accelerating their financial reporting procedures to produce their year-end accounts. The Bristol workshop on 20 October was attended by members of Torridge's 

Finance team.

• Our Joint Venture Seminar was held in Taunton on 6 December 2016, which provided an insight into setting up and running JVs and was attended by 22 officers and members from 

Councils in the South West, including your Strategic Manager (Resources). 

• We are holding our own local government accounts workshops in 2016/17. Local events were held in Plymouth on 28 February and in Bristol on 1 March.  Key members of the 

Torridge finance team attended the workshops.

P
age 53



Sector issues and developments

P
age 54



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Torridge District Council

7© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Local Government Finance Settlement
The final local government settlement for 2017/18 was 

published on 20 February. The settlement reflects the 

Government's aim that all councils will become self funding, 

with central government grants being phased out. This is year 

two of the four year offer, which has been accepted by 97% 

of councils. 

There is an expectation that councils will continue to improve 

efficiencies  with measures including further developments in 

digital technology, new delivery models and innovative 

partnership arrangements.

100% business rates retention

The announcement has an increased focus on business rates, 

with the expectation that by the end of the current 

Parliament, local government will keep 100% of the income 

raised through business rates.  The exact details of the 

reforms are yet to be determined.  This includes confirming 

which additional responsibilities will be devolved to local 

government and funded through these retained rates. Pilots 

of the reforms are taking place across the country from April 

2017.

The results of a recent Municipal  Journal survey  2017 State of 
Local Government Finance have recently been published. 

http://downloads2.dodsmonitoring.com/downloads/Misc_Fil

es/LocalGovFinance.pdf

Respondents expressed concern about the lack of detail in the 

proposals, uncertainty around equalisation measures and the 

scale of appeals.  

Nearly 50% of Councils responding believe they will lose from 

the transition to 100% retention of business rates.  Views were 

evenly split as to whether the proposals would incentivise local 

economic growth.

Social Care Funding 

Funding allocations reflect increased funding of social care with a 

stated £3.5 billion of funding for social care by 2019/2020.

In this year's settlement £240 million of new homes bonus has 

been redirected into  the adult social care grant.  In addition 

councils are once again be able to raise the precept by up to 3% 

for funding of social care.

Recognising that funding is not the only answer, further reforms 

are to be brought forward to support the provision of a 

sustainable market for social care.  There is an expectation that all 

areas of the country move towards the integration of health and 

social care services by 2020.

Paul Dossett Head of  Local Government in Grant 

Thornton LLP  has commented on the Government 

proposals for social care funding (see link for full article).

"The government’s changes to council tax and the social care 

precept, announced by the Secretary of State for DCLG as part of 

the latest local government finance settlement, will seem to many 

as nothing more than a temporary fix. There is real concern about 

the postcode lottery nature of these tax-raising powers that are 

intended to fund our ailing social care system."   

“Our analysis on social care shows that the most deprived areas 

in the UK derive the lowest proportion of their income from 

council tax. " 

“Conversely, more affluent areas collecting more council tax will 

potentially receive a bigger financial benefit from these 

measures.” 

"Our analysis shows that the impact and effectiveness of the 

existing social care precept is not equal across authorities. So any 

further changes to tax raising powers for local government will

"Social care precept changes 

will not help those living in 

more deprived areas" 

"The UK has a long tradition of 

providing care to those who 

need it most. If that is to 

continue, the government must 

invest in a robust social care 

system that can cater for all 

based on needs and not on 

geography. From a taxpayer’s 

perspective this is a zero sum 

game. For every £1 not 

invested in social care, the cost 

to the NHS is considerably 

more"

National developments

Links: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-

government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-

government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-

precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-

deprived-areas/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-

alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/

not tackle the crisis of social care in our most 

disadvantaged communities and arguably make 

only make a small dent in the cost demands in 

our more affluent communities."

P
age 55

http://downloads2.dodsmonitoring.com/downloads/Misc_Files/LocalGovFinance.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Torridge District Council

8© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Pooling of  LGPS
From 1 April 2018 £200bn of assets from 90 LGPS 

funds across England and Wales will be merged into 

six ‘British Wealth Funds’. By pooling investment, 

costs can be reduced through economies of scale and 

through sharing of expertise, while the schemes can 

maintain overall investment performance. Pension funds 

will continue to be managed and maintained by the 

separate administering authorities. The selection of fund 

managers will be made by the investment pool operator 

on behalf of a pool of co-operating administrative 

authorities, while individual investment strategies, 

including asset allocation, will remain the responsibility of 

the individual administrative authority.  

Potentially eight pools are to be established across the 

country with total assets ranging from £13bn in both the 

LPP  and  Wales pool, to £36bn in the Border to Coast 

pool.  It is expected that assets will be transferred to the 

pools as soon as practicable after 1 April 2018.  

Tasks to be completed by April 2018 include:

• creating legal structures for pools

• transferring staff

• creating supervisory boards/ committees

• obtaining FCA authorisations

• appointing providers

• assessing MiFID II implications

• determining pool structures for each asset type

The funds themselves will retain responsibility  for:

• investment strategy

• asset allocation

• having a responsible investment strategy

• reporting to employers and members

Governance arrangements 

There is  no mandatory membership of oversight 

structures. It is for  each pool to develop the proposals 

they consider appropriate. The majority of decision 

making remains at the local level and therefore the 

involvement of local pension boards in those areas would 

not change. Scheme managers should consider how best 

to involve their pension boards in ensuring the effective 

implementation of investment and responsible investment 

strategies by pools, which could include representation on 

oversight structures.

CIPFA in the recent article  Clear pools: the future of the 

LGPS highlights the need for good governance  

particularly  in view of  the complex web of stakeholders 

involved in investment pooling,.  Robust governance will 

be vital to ensuring a smooth transition and continuing 

operation of the funds 

National developments

Link: 

http://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-

thinks/cipfa-thinks-

articles/clear-pools-the-future-

of-the-lgps?

typical structure of 

LGPS Pool

P
age 56

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/ZpXABIg4kMcx?domain=email.cipfa.org.uk


Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Torridge District Council

9© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Fixing our broken housing market
DCLG published its housing White Paper on 7 February 

2017. It opens with the statement:

“The housing market in this country is broken, and the 

cause is very simple: for too long, we haven’t built enough 

homes.”

It goes on to summarise three key challenges in the 

housing market.

1. Over 40 per cent of local planning authorities do not 

have a plan that meets the projected growth in 

households in their area. 

2. The pace of development is too slow. There is a large 

gap between permissions granted and new homes 

built. More than a third of new homes that were 

granted planning permission between 2010/11 and 

2015/16 have yet to be built.

3. The structure of the housing market makes it harder 

to increase supply. Housing associations have been 

doing well – they’re behind around a third of all new 

housing completed over the past five years – but the 

commercial developers still dominate the market.

The proposals in the White Paper set out how the 

Government intends to boost housing supply and, over 

the long term, create a more efficient housing market 

whose outcomes more closely match the needs and 

aspirations of all households and which supports wider 

economic prosperity.

It states that the challenge of increasing housing supply 

cannot be met by the government acting alone and 

summarises how the government will work with local 

authorities, private developers, local communities, housing 

associations and not for profit developers, lenders, and 

utility companies and infrastructure providers.

For local authorities, the government is:

• offering higher fees and new capacity funding to 

develop planning departments, simplified plan-

making, and more funding for infrastructure; 

• will make it easier for local authorities to take action 

against those who do not build out once permissions 

have been granted; and

• is interested in the scope for bespoke housing deals to 

make the most of local innovation. 

The government is looking to local authorities to be as 

ambitious and innovative as possible to get homes built 

in their area. It is asking all local authorities to:

• develop an up-to-date plan with their communities 

that meets their housing requirement (or, if that is not 

possible, to work with neighbouring authorities to 

ensure it is met); 

• decide applications for development promptly; and

• ensure the homes they have planned for are built out 

on time. 

The White Paper states that it is crucial that local 

authorities hold up their end of the bargain. It goes on to 

say that where local authorities are not making sufficient 

progress on producing or reviewing their plans, the 

Government will intervene. It also notes that where the 

number of homes being built is below expectations, the 

new housing delivery test will ensure that action is taken.

The White Paper goes on to consider in more detail:

• Planning for the right homes in the right places

• Building homes faster 

• Diversifying the market

• Helping people now

National developments

Consultation on the White Paper will begin on 7 

February 2017. The consultation will run for 12 

weeks and will close on 2 May 2017.

The White Paper is available at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/syste

m/uploads/attachment_data/file/590464/Fixing

_our_broken_housing_market_-

_print_ready_version.pdf

P
age 57

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/590464/Fixing_our_broken_housing_market_-_print_ready_version.pdf


Grant Thornton

P
age 58



Audit & Governance Committee progress report and  update – Torridge District Council

11© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The income spectrum
Helping local authorities to achieve revenue and strategic objectives to create a vibrant economies

Grant Thornton market insight

Income generation is increasingly an essential part of the solution to providing sustainable local services, alongside managing demand 

reduction and cost efficiency. Our report gives local authorities the tools needed to maximise their ability to do so.

Our new research on income generation which includes our CFO Insights too suggests that:

• councils are increasingly using income generation to diversify their funding base, and are commercialising in a 

variety of ways. This ranges from fees and charges (household garden waste, car parking, private use of 

public spaces), asset management (utilities, personnel, advertising, wifi concession license) and company 

spin-offs (housing, energy, local challenger banks), through to treasury investments (real estate development, 

solar farms, equity investment).

• the ideal scenario to commercialise is investing to earn with a financial and social return. Councils are now 

striving to generate income in way which achieves multiple strategic outcomes for the same spend; 

examining options to balance budgets while simultaneously boosting growth, supporting vulnerable 

communities and protecting the environment.

• stronger commercialisation offers real potential for councils to meet revenue and strategic challenges for 

2020 onwards. Whilst there are examples of good practice and innovation, this opportunity is not being fully 

exploited across the sector due to an absence of a holistic and integrated approach to corporate strategy 

development (a common vision for success, understanding current performance, selecting appropriate new 

opportunities, the capacity and culture to deliver change). 

To support local authorities as they develop income generation strategies, the report provides:

• case study examples

• local authority spend analysis

• examples of innovative financial mechanisms

• critical success factors to consider

P
age 59



‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms 

provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or 

more member firms, as the context requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 

(GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. 

GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or 

omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved | Draft

P
age 60



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

The Audit Plan

for Torridge District Council

Year ended 31 March 2017

Geraldine Daly

Associate Director

T 0117 305 7741

E geri.n.daly@uk.gt.com

Mark Bartlett

Audit Manager

T 0117 305 7896

E mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com

Peter Brereton

Executive

T 0117 305 7888

E peter.d.brereton@uk.gt.com

2 May 2017

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 12



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17 2

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

This Audit Plan sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Torridge District Council, the Audit and Governance Committee), an overview of 

the planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the 

consequences of our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. 

It also helps us gain a better understanding of the Council and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management. 

We are required to perform our audit in line with Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit Office 

(NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015. Our responsibilities under the Code are to:

- give an opinion on the Council's financial statements

- satisfy ourselves the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair 

view.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process.  

It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change. In particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks 

which may affect the Council or all weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit. We do not accept any responsibility for any 

loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other 

purpose. 

We look forward to working with you during the course of the audit.

Yours sincerely

Engagement Lead

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Hartwell House 

55 – 61 Victoria Street

Bristol

BS1 6FT

www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

2 May 2017

Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Committee

Audit Plan for Torridge Council for the year ending 31 March 2017

Torridge District Council

Riverbank House

Bideford

EX39 2QG

P
age 62



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Contents

Section

Understanding your business and key developments 4

Materiality 5

Significant risks identified 6

Other risks identified 9

Value for Money 12

Other audit responsibilities 15

Results of interim audit work 16

The audit cycle 18

Audit fees 19

Independence and non-audit services 20

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance 21

Appendices

Appendix 1: Action plan 22

3

P
age 63



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council |  2016/17

Understanding your business and key developments

Key challenges Financial reporting changesDevelopments

Our response

 We aim to complete all our substantive audit work of your financial statements by 31 July 2017.

 As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements accurately reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2016/17 Code. 

 We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  reporting requirements for 2016/17 through on-going discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

 We will review the Council's medium term financial plan, savings plans and targets and the year end outturn position as part of our work in reaching our VFM conclusion.

 We will consider the potential impact on the Council of the changes to North Devon +, including whether there is a group accounts impact.

Highways network asset (HNA)

On the 14 November, 2016 CIPFA/LASAAC announced a 

deferral of measuring the Highways Network Asset at 

Depreciated Replacement Cost in local authority financial 

statements for 2016/17. This deferral is due to delays in 

obtaining updated central rates for valuations. 

CIPFA/LASAAC have now reviewed the position and 

decided at its meeting on 8 March not to proceed with the 

introduction of the Highways Network Asset Code into the 

financial reporting requirements of local authorities.

Autumn Statement 

The Chancellor detailed plans 

in the Autumn Statement to 

increase funding for Housing 

and Infrastructure, and further 

extend devolved powers to 

Local Authorities. No plans 

were announced to increase 

funding for adult social care. 

Local challenges

As with the majority of 

Councils, Torridge DC has 

a significant challenge in 

achieving its identified 

savings target in the 

medium term.

The total central 

government funding in 

2017/18 has reduced by 

£479k from 2016/17, with 

the revenue support grant 

reduction accounting fro 

£430k of this fall.

This will continue to focus 

the Council’s plans going 

forward.

CIPFA Code of Practice 2016/17 (the Code)

Changes to the Code in  2016/17 reflect aims of the 'Telling 

the Story' project, to streamline the financial statements to 

be more in line with internal organisational reporting and 

improve accessibility to the reader of the financial 

statements.

The changes affect the presentation of the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in 

Reserves Statements, segmental reporting disclosures and 

a new Expenditure and Funding Analysis note has been 

introduced .The Code also requires these amendments to 

be reflected in the 2015/16 comparatives by way of a prior 

period adjustment.

We have discussed the requirements of the Code with 

Council officers, who have plans in place to deal with the 

new disclosure requirements. This area has been added to 

our audit plan as an "other Risk" see page 10

Earlier closedown

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require councils 

to bring forward the approval and audit of financial 

statements to 31 July by the 2017/2018 financial year.

The Council plans to complete its closedown earlier than the 

prior year and we plan to complete our audit fieldwork by 31 

July 2017.

Transforming Torridge

The next phase of the Transforming Torridge Programme is 

underway, which will includes alterations to the Riverbank 

House Building and the eventual move of all staff out of 

Bridge Buildings. This is a significant project for the Council 

and is a key part of its plans in the Medium Term.

4

North Devon +

The Council’s relationship with North Devon + has changed 

recently as the Council looks to make changes to the 

company. We have had early discussions with the Council 

on the proposed changes.

P
age 64



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Materiality
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in planning and 

performing an audit. The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but 

also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. An item does not necessarily have to be large to be considered to have a material effect on 

the financial statements. An item may be considered to be material by nature, for example, when greater precision is required (e.g. senior manager salaries and allowances). 

We determine planning materiality (materiality for the financial statements as a whole determined at the planning stage of the audit) in order to estimate the tolerable level of misstatement in 

the financial statements, assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests, calculate sample sizes and assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in 

the financial statements.

We have determined planning materiality based upon professional judgement in the context of our knowledge of the Council. In line with previous years, we have calculated financial 

statements materiality based on a proportion of the gross revenue expenditure of the Council. For purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £701k (being 

2% of gross revenue expenditure). Our assessment of materiality is kept under review throughout the audit process and we will advise you if we revise this during the audit.

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because 

we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually 

or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £35k.

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of 

lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. We have identified the following items 

where separate materiality levels are appropriate:

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level

Cash and cash equivalents Although the balance of cash and cash equivalents is immaterial, all 

transactions made by the Council affect the balance and it is therefore 

considered to be material by nature.  

£10k

Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary 

bandings and exit packages in the notes to the 

financial statements

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made.

£5k, to ensure the correct bandings are used

Audit fees

Members allowances

Related party transactions

Due to public interest in these disclosures. £1k

£5k

£20k

5

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of the financial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 

or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial information needs 

of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered. (ISA (UK and Ireland) 320)

P
age 65



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Significant risks identified
An audit is focused on risks. Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK and Ireland) as risks that, in the judgment of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In 

identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher 

risk of material misstatement.

Significant risk Description Audit procedures

The revenue cycle

includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a presumed 

risk that revenue streams may be misstated due to the 

improper recognition of revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 

due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at 

Torridge District Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue 

recognition can be rebutted, because:

• There is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition.

• Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited.

• The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Torridge District Council, 

mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Torridge District Council.

Management over-

ride of controls

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a non-

rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of management 

over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

Work completed to date:

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management.

 Review of journal entry process and selection of unusual journal entries for testing back to 

supporting documentation for months 1 to 10.

 Review of unusual significant transactions.

Further work planned: 

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management.

 Review of journal entry process and selection of unusual journal entries for testing back to 

supporting documentation for months 11 to 12 and closedown journals.

 Review of unusual significant transactions.

6

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or 

nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's 

normal course of business as giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 550)

P
age 66



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Significant risks identified (continued)

Significant risk Description Audit procedures

The expenditure cycle includes 
fraudulent transactions 

Practice Note 10 suggests that the 

risk of material misstatement due to 

fraudulent financial reporting that 

may arise from the manipulation of 

expenditure recognition needs to be 

considered.

We do not consider that there is a fraud risk in relation to expenditure recognition, however we do 

recognise that there is a risk around completeness, in particular 'Year end creditors and accruals are 

understated or not recorded in the correct period' and employee remuneration is understated. 

Work completed to date:

 Review of internal financial controls relating to operating expenses and employee remuneration.

 Walkthrough testing to confirm that controls are implemented.

Further work planned:

The further work planned for our risks in relation to operating expenses and employee remuneration are 

detailed on page 9 . 

Valuation of property, plant and 

equipment 

The Council revalues its assets on 

a rolling basis over a five year 

period. The Code requires that the 

Council ensures that the carrying 

value at the balance sheet date is 

not materially different from the 

current value. This represents a 

significant estimate by management 

in the financial statements.

Work completed to date:

 Review of management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate.

 Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used.

 Review of the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work.

Further work planned:

 Discussions with valuer about the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenge of the key 

assumptions.

 Review and challenge of the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent with our 

understanding.

 Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's asset 

register.

 Evaluation of the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and 

how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value.

We have also identified the following significant risks of material misstatement from our understanding of the entity. We set out below the work we have completed to date 

and the work we plan to address these risks.

7

P
age 67



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Significant risks identified (continued)

Significant risk Description Audit procedures

Valuation of pension fund net 

liability

The Council's pension fund asset 

and liability as reflected in its 

balance sheet represent a 

significant estimate in the financial 

statements.

Work completed to date:

 Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your pension fund 

valuation. 

Work planned:

 We will identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is not 

materially misstated. We will also assess whether these controls were implemented as expected and 

whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement.

 We will review the accuracy of the information supplied to the pension fund by the Council.

 We will review the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your pension 

fund valuation. We will gain an understanding of the basis on which the valuation is carried out.

 We will undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made. 

 We will review the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to the 

financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary.

8

P
age 68



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Other risks identified
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement 

cannot be reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of 

substantive work. The risk of misstatement for an RPR or other risk is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly 

judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of the business.

Reasonably possible risks Description of risk Audit procedures

Operating expenses Year end creditors and accruals 

are understated or not recorded 

in the correct period.

Work completed to date:

 Review of internal financial controls relating to operating expenses.

 Walkthrough testing to confirm that controls are implemented.

Further work planned:

 Review the application of the year end closedown process for capturing creditor accruals.

 Undertake substantive testing of year end creditors including after date payments.

 Test Goods Received not Invoiced listing to confirm appropriate accruals.

 Review control account reconciliations covering the agreement of creditor payments to the 

ledger.

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration 

accruals are understated

Work completed to date:

 Review of internal financial controls relating to employee remuneration.

 Walkthrough testing to confirm that controls are implemented.

Further work planned:

 Reconcile the annual payroll to the ledger and to the segmental analysis note in the accounts.

 Complete trend analysis of monthly and weekly payroll payments covering 2016/17 and 

comparing to 2015/16 to determine whether substantive testing is required.

 Review of payroll accrual processes and determine whether substantive testing is required.

 Substantive testing of the completeness of IAS19 pension liabilities.

 Agreement of employee remuneration disclosures in the financial statements to supporting 

evidence.

9

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) 

P
age 69



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Other risks identified (continued)
Other risks Description of risk Audit procedures

Changes to the presentation of local authority 

financial statements

CIPFA has been working on the 

‘Telling the Story’ project, for 

which the aim was to streamline 

the financial statements and 

improve accessibility to the user 

and this has resulted in changes 

to the 2016/17 Code of Practice.

The changes affect the 

presentation of income and 

expenditure in the financial 

statements and associated 

disclosure notes. A prior period 

adjustment (PPA) to restate the 

2015/16 comparative figures is 

also required.

Work completed to date:

 We have documented and evaluated the process for the recording the required financial 

reporting changes to the 2016/17 financial statements.

Further work planned:

 We will review the re-classification of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (CIES) comparatives to ensure that they are in line with the Authority’s internal 

reporting structure.

 We will review the appropriateness of the revised grouping of entries within the 

Movement In Reserves Statement (MIRS).

 We will test the classification of income and expenditure for 2016/17 recorded within the 

Cost of Services section of the CIES.

 We will test the completeness  of income and expenditure by reviewing the reconciliation 

of the CIES to the general ledger.

 We will test the classification of income and expenditure reported within the new 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) note to the financial statements.

 We will review the new segmental reporting disclosures within the 2016/17 financial 

statements  to ensure compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice.

10

P
age 70



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Other risks identified (continued)

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 

will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous sections but will include:

• Heritage assets

• Long and short term debtors

• Short term investments

• Cash and cash equivalents

• Short term creditors

• Provisions

• Borrowings and other liabilities (long term)

• Useable and unusable reserves

• Movement in Reserves Statement and associated notes

• Statement of cash flows and associated notes

• Other operating expenditure

• Financing and investment income and expenditure

• Taxation and non-specific grants

• New note disclosures

• Officers' remuneration note

• Related party transactions note

• Capital expenditure and capital financing note

• Financial instruments note

• Collection Fund and associated notes

11

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption 

in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a 

going concern” (ISA (UK and Ireland) 570). We will review the management's assessment of the going concern assumption and the disclosures in the financial 

statements. 

P
age 71



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Value for Money

Background

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work for 2016/17 in November 2016. The guidance states that for local 
government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the 
Council has proper arrangements in place.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out opposite:

Sub-criteria Detail

Informed decision 

making

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and 

applying the principles and values of sound governance

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and 

performance information (including, where relevant, 

information from regulatory/monitoring bodies) to 

support informed decision making and performance 

management

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the 

delivery of strategic priorities

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system 

of internal control

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable 

delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory 

functions

• Managing and utilising assets effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce 

effectively to deliver strategic priorities.

Working with 

partners and 

other third parties

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic 

priorities

• Commissioning services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities.

12

P
age 72



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Value for Money (continued)

Risk assessment

We have carried out an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's auditor's guidance note (AGN03). In our initial risk assessment, we considered:

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial statements.

• the findings of other inspectorates and review agencies.

• any illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its Supporting Information.

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your arrangements.

We have identified significant risks which we are required to communicate to you. These are set out overleaf.

We will continue our review of your arrangements, including reviewing your Annual Governance Statement, before we issue our auditor's report.

13

Reporting

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in our Audit Findings Report and in the Annual Audit Letter. 

We will include our conclusion in our auditor's report on your financial statements which we will give by 25 August 2017.

P
age 73



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Value for money (continued)
We set out below the significant risks we have identified as a result of our initial risk assessment and the work we propose to address these risks.

Significant risk Link to sub-criteria Work proposed to address

Medium Term Financial Planning

Like all public sector bodies, the Council is facing financial 

pressures with cuts in central funding and has recently 

refreshed its Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), 

taking into accounts recent changes such as the changes in 

the arrangements for New Homes Bonus.  The MTFS is 

balanced through to 2021/22 partly by use of reserves 

This links to the Council's arrangements for planning 

finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery 

of strategic priorities and using appropriate cost and 

performance information to support informed decision 

making.

We will review the Council's latest MTFS and the 2017/18 

budget, considering the assumptions that underpin the 

figures within them. 

Transformation Programme

The next phase of the Transforming Torridge Programme is 

underway, which will includes alterations to the Riverbank 

House Building and the eventual move of all staff out of 

Bridge Buildings. The project has been delayed by 

Environment Agency requirements on the proposals for 

Riverbank House.

This links to the Council's arrangements for planning 

finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery 

of strategic priorities and using appropriate cost and 

performance information to support informed decision 

making.

We will review the arrangements in place around this next 

phase of the transformation project, which is a significant 

project for the Council and the way that it will deliver its 

services. This will include the revenue and capital 

implications of the programme, the monitoring of the 

project, and the reporting to members to inform decision 

making.

14

P
age 74



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Other audit responsibilities

15

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice in relation to your financial statements and arrangements for economy, efficiency and effectiveness we 

have a number of other audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We will undertake work to satisfy ourselves that the disclosures made in your Annual Governance Statement are in line with CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and 

consistent with our knowledge of the Council.

• We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the financial statements on which we give an  opinion and that the disclosures included 

in it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.

• We will carry out work on your  consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government Accounts process in accordance with NAO instructions to auditors.

• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, including:

• We will give electors the opportunity to raise questions about your financial statements and consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to 

the financial statements;

• issue of a report in the public interest; and

• making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of State

• We certify completion of our audit. 

P
age 75



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Results of  interim audit work

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Work performed Conclusion

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall 

arrangements. Our work has not identified any issues which we wish 

to bring to your attention. 

We have also reviewed internal audit's work on the Council's key 

financial systems to date. We have followed up the weaknesses 

identified by internal audit in their 'ICT Cyber Security' report and 

have confirmed progress is being made actioning the red risk 

recommendations. 

Overall, we have concluded that the internal audit service 

provides an independent and satisfactory service to the 

Council and that internal audit work contributes to an effective 

internal control environment.

Our review of internal audit work has not identified any 

weaknesses which impact on our audit approach. 

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control 

environment relevant to the preparation of the financial statements 

including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged with governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial statements.

Review of information technology

controls

We performed a high level review of the general IT control 

environment, as part of the overall review of the internal controls 

system. 

IT (information technology) controls were observed to have been 

implemented in accordance with our documented understanding.

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial statements.

We have confirmed that progress is being made to action the 

recommendations in the cyber security report.

16

P
age 76



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Results of  interim audit work (continued)

Work performed Conclusion

Walkthrough testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the Council's controls 

operating in areas where we consider that there is a risk of material 

misstatement to the financial statements. These areas are: 

Operating Expenses, Employee Remuneration and PPE Valuation. 

Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your 

attention. Internal controls have been implemented by the Council in 

accordance with our documented understanding. 

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach. 

Journal entry controls We have reviewed the Council's journal entry policies and 
procedures as part of determining our journal entry testing strategy 
and have not identified any material weaknesses which are likely to 
adversely impact on the Council's control environment or financial 
statements.

To date we have undertaken detailed testing on journal transactions 
recorded for the first ten months of the financial year, by extracting 
'unusual' entries for further review. No issues have been identified 
that we wish to highlight for your attention.

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach to date.

We plan to undertake detailed testing of journal transactions 

recorded for the remaining months of the financial year during 

the accounts audit.  

We also plan to review year-end controls and undertake 

detailed testing of journal transactions recorded in the 

closedown period during the accounts audit.

Early substantive testing We have completed early substantive testing in a number of areas to
reduce the year end workload and to provide earlier assurances for
our final accounts planning.
We have performed testing of months 1 to 10 transactions in the 
following areas:
• Revenues (non-grant income)
• Operating expenses (expenditure payments)
• Employee remuneration (payroll transactions)
• Welfare expenditure (housing benefit transactions).
We have also discussed a number of areas with officers and agreed
the accounting treatment, including accruals limits, housing benefit 
overpayment provision and PPE fixed asset register restatement.  
We will continue to discuss progress with the 'Telling the Story' 
project and plan to review the restatement prior to the year-end.
We have also discussed the changes in arrangements for North 
Devon + and will consider the Council’s proposed treatment within 
the accounts.

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach.

Our revenues testing identified one transaction that was an 

internal transaction, which should not be accounted for as 

income to the Council.  The Council has reviewed similar 

transactions and confirmed it will not record these as 

expenditure in the year-end accounts.

We plan to undertake detailed testing on transactions recorded 

for the remaining months of the financial year during the 

accounts audit.

17

P
age 77



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

DRAFT
The audit cycle

The audit timeline

Key dates:

Audit phases:

Year end: 

31 March 2017

Close out: 

31 July 2017

Audit committee: 

22 August 2017

Sign off: 

23 August 2017

Planning 

February / March 2017

Interim  

w/c 20 February 2017

Final  

w/c 17 July 2017

Completion  

31 July 2017

Key elements

 Planning meeting with management to 

inform audit planning and agree audit 

timetable

 Issue audit working paper 

requirements to management

 Discussions with those charged with 

governance and internal audit to 

inform audit planning

 Discuss draft Audit Plan with 

management

 Issue the Audit Plan to management 

and Audit & Governance Committee

 Meeting with Audit & Governance 

Committee to discuss the Audit Plan

Key elements

 Document design effectiveness of key 

accounting systems and processes

 Review of key judgements and 

estimates

 Early substantive audit testing

 Review of Value for Money 

arrangements

 Issue Progress report to management 

and Audit & Governance Committee

Key elements

 Audit teams onsite to 

complete detailed audit testing

 Weekly update meetings with 

management

 Final review of Value for 

Money arrangements

Key elements

 Issue draft Audit Findings to 

management

 Meeting with management to discuss 

Audit Findings

 Issue draft Audit Findings to Audit & 

Governance Committee

 Audit Findings presentation to Audit & 

Governance Committee

 Finalise approval and signing of 

financial statements and audit report

 Submission of WGA assurance 

statement

 Annual Audit Letter

Debrief 

September 

2017

18

P
age 78



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Fees

£

Council audit 41,288

Grant Certification 8,444*

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 49,732

Audit Fees

* Indicative fee

Our fee assumptions include:

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 

request list

 The scope of the audit, and the Council and its activities, have not 

changed significantly

 The Council will make available management and accounting staff to 

help us locate information and to provide explanations

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 

working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly.

Grant certification

 Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 

certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited

 Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance 

reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'.

What is included within our fees

 A reliable and risk-focused audit appropriate for your business

 Invitations to events hosted by Grant Thornton in your sector, as well as the wider 

finance community

 Regular sector updates

 Ad-hoc telephone calls and queries

 Technical briefings and updates

 Regular contact to discuss strategy and other important areas

 A review of accounting policies for appropriateness and consistency

 Annual technical updates for members of your finance team

 Regular Audit Committee Progress Reports

Fees for other services

There are no fees for other services.  Any proposed fees for other services will be 

discussed with management and would be reported in our Audit Findings Report and 

Annual Audit Letter.

19

P
age 79



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Independence

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have 

complied with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.

20

P
age 80



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance

Our communication plan

Audit 

Plan

Audit 

Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance



Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications



Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought



Confirmation of independence and objectivity  

A statement that we have complied with  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence. 

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged.  

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit 

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements



Non compliance with laws and regulations 

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter 

Uncorrected misstatements 

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties 

Significant matters in relation to going concern  

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK 

and Ireland) prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those 

charged with governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.  

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

while The Audit Findings will be issued prior to approval of the financial statements  and 

will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together with an 

explanation as to how these have been resolved.

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Council.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs (UK and 

Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged 

with governance.

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/)

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 

covering finance and governance matters. 

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 

CCG's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code. 

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with 

governance of their responsibilities.

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 

the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities.

21

P
age 81

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2016/17

Appendix 1: Action plan

Priority
High - Significant effect on control system
Medium - Effect on control system
Low - Best practice

Rec

No. Recommendation Priority Management response

Implementation date & 

responsibility

1 The Code requires that internal 

transactions are not accounted for by the 

Council.  The Council should review its 

income and expenditure transactions to 

ensure internal transactions are not 

accounted for within the Council's 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (CIES).  

Medium This pertained to internal Council departments booking 

the conference facilities at Caddsdown. The procedure 

has changed, and there is no “internal” income charged 

for Council departments reserving the facilities at 

Caddsdown.

Additionally the Council will no longer credit the property 

services department with income where voluntary sector 

organisations are provided free accommodation in lieu 

of grant.

February 2017 – Finance

Manager

22

P
age 82



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership. 

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients. 

grant-thornton.co.uk

23

P
age 83



Agenda Item
REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Internal Audit Strategy, Charter and Plan 
Date: 18th April 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To present the annual Internal Audit plan for 2017/18.

1. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of the Council’s Internal Audit function is to provide, through the Audit & 
Governance Committee, an independent and objective opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s arrangements for the governance, risk management and controls 
implemented to achieve the Council’s agreed objectives. 

Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of The Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2016, which state: “A relevant authority must undertake an effective 
internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance”.

This opinion forms part of the framework of assurances that the Council receives and is 
designed to be used to help inform the Annual Governance Statement. To provide an 
objective, evidence based opinion, a wide ranging programme of audits are planned 
covering many aspects of the Council’s operations including where this may be 
delivered through partnerships and contracts. 

The 2016/17 audit plan was delivered by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) via a trial 
partnership agreement, with the Service Improvement Officer acting as liaison and 
reporting to management and committee on audit matters. During the year the Audit & 
Governance Committee monitored the arrangements with DAP and at the meeting on 
29th November 2016 recommended that Torridge join the Devon Audit Partnership 
with effect from 1 April 2017 for a period of seven years with a review after 5 years.  
Torridge will also have representation on the Partnership Committee. This was agreed 
by Full council on 5 December 2016. 

2. REPORT

Responsibility
As from April 2013 all local authority auditors have a mandatory requirement to comply 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which have been adopted by 
both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants (CIPFA) and the Chartered 
Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA). CIPFA remains the organisation responsible for 
setting the standards for internal audit in local authorities, and have supplemented the 
PSIAS with a Local Government Application Note (LGAN). The requirements of the 
PSIAS are based on the standards set by the IIA with a limited number of additional 
requirements and interpretations that allow the PSIAS to be adopted by local 
authorities.  

Page 84

Agenda Item 13



The Standards require that the Head of Internal Audit (for Torridge this is the 
Governance Manager and the Audit Manager from DAP) must “establish risk-based 
plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the 
organisation’s goals”.  When completing these plans, the Head of Internal Audit should 
take account of the organisation’s risk management framework. The plan should be 
adjusted and reviewed, as necessary, in response to changes in the organisation’s 
business, risk, operations, programs, systems and controls. The plan must take 
account of the requirement to produce an internal audit opinion and assurance 
framework.

Professional Standards
Devon Audit Partnership ensures that it meets all current, relevant professional 
guidance. DAP internal audit activity conforms to the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

In December 2016 DAP welcomed Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance for Hertfordshire 
Shared Internal Audit Service and his colleague Chris Wood, Audit Manager, who 
completed an external validation of the Partnership. Terry and Chris concluded that;
“It is our overall opinion that the Devon Audit Partnership generally conforms * to the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, including the Definition of Internal Auditing, the 
Code of Ethics and the Standards.

* Generally Conforms – This is the top rating and means that the internal audit service has a 
charter, policies and processes that are judged to be in conformance to the Standards

The review team found areas of good practice and high standards, including:
 The partnership is well established and has gained an extremely good reputation 

with its member councils.  The review team received consistently positive feedback 
about DAP from client officers and audit committee members.

 The auditors conduct themselves in a professional manner, display knowledge of 
the areas they are auditing, adopt a flexible approach and are seen to be 
responsive to the needs of the client.

 Audit assignments are well planned and testing is directed to those areas of 
greatest importance. Working papers within the Partnership’s Audit Management 
System (MKInsight) are completed to a good standard.

 You can see the full report from Terry and Chris at:
https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/why-choose-dap/professional-standards/

How the Annual Audit Plan was Developed
The Internal Audit Plan has been updated following discussions with the Head of Paid 
Service and Strategic Manager (Resources), also taking into account any concerns 
identified by SMT and OMT, the Audit & Governance Committee, and changes in the 
Council’s Risk Management arrangements. 

We have identified a few areas where we can place reliance on other sources of 
assurance, such as for the Crematorium where North Devon Council’s auditors provide 
assurance on the financial controls; and for benefit subsidies and the Financial 
Accounts where we rely on the External Auditor’s assurance. Our External Auditors 
(Grant Thornton) approach does not require them to place reliance on the work of 
Internal Audit, although they should draw from the observations and conclusions of 
Internal Audit. This may cause some sense of duplicated effort for the clients and we 
continue to schedule audits so that key service departments, such as Finance and 
Revenues & Benefits and Accountancy, do not feel swamped by auditors.

Page 85

https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/why-choose-dap/professional-standards/


A Risk Management audit was undertaken in March 2017. The draft audit report noted 
some improvements since the previous audit (e.g. a separate Risk Management 
Group has met throughout the year to emphasis the strategic importance of Risk 
Management, and to ensure that all risk registers are regularly reviewed and 
challenged). The draft audit report also highlighted a number areas were 
improvements can be made, for example: the need for greater awareness of RM 
through training, ensuring partnership risk records are up to date, and ensuring that 
risk information is available to the A&G Committee in advance of meetings.

Resources
Since 2014 internal audit responsibilities have been under the remit of the Governance 
Manager. 
 
For 2017/18 DAP will deliver the internal audit plan on behalf of Torridge. This will 
enable the delivery of 166 audit days plus 16 days for audit management. Contingency 
(for additional audits and/or investigatory work) will be provided by requesting 
additional days from DAP. The Devon Audit Partnership will continue to ensure that 
only auditors with relevant knowledge, skills and experience will be used. The 
Partnership Agreement underpins the quality and performance levels required. 

The Governance Team will provide the elements of the internal audit function which 
have been retained in-house such as co-ordinating the scheduling of audits; updating 
the SPAR records with agreed actions; monitoring progress with actions; reporting to 
Committee; reviewing results from the DAP customer survey process to improve the 
audit service where necessary; monitoring performance and maintaining the internal 
audit performance indicator records; dealing with management enquiries; and 
producing the Audit & Governance Newsletter as and when required. 

It is anticipated that DAP will deliver the Internal Audit plan for a period of seven years 
(with a review after 5 years). However should Torridge wish to exit the partnership 
arrangement then we can trigger the clause by submitting notice to exit allowing a 12 
twelve month period to quit.

Any work or relationships which may affect the independence and objectivity of the 
auditors are required to be disclosed under auditing standards. There are no matters to 
disclose for 2016/17 and 2017/18.  

A breakdown of audit days is provided at Appendix C as part of the detailed internal 
audit plan for 2017/18.  

Audit Techniques
The audit function will employ a range of audit techniques to deliver the audit plan:
- the baseline procedure will be risk based auditing which considers the risks identified 

by management and the mitigating controls introduced to reduce this risk to within the 
organisational risk appetite. Mitigating controls will be reviewed to ensure they are 
appropriate, and then testing is completed to ensure they are being applied 
consistently and achieve the desired outcome; 

- a selection of significant partnerships and major contracts included will be audited to 
ensure controls have been implemented by management to ensure promises, 
arrangements and benefits are delivered to price, quality and time

- continue to make use of the Idea software wherever appropriate, which will mean that 
rather than testing samples of data, all transactions can be tested or analysed. This 
will be used where most cost-effective as although it increases the level of assurance 
which can be given it takes slightly more time to set up the initial testing regimes. It 
also means data can be matched from one system to another, although this must 
always take into account data protection principles.

Page 86



Progress Reporting and Flexibility of the Plan

As in previous years the plan sets out the work intended to be covered during 2017/18 but 
it also recognises that risks may change during the year and this may require some 
amendment or flexibility of the plan. The contingency arrangements will allow for some 
flexibility and progress with the plan will be reported via the audit newsletter and any 
changes will also be agreed with management and reported to Committee.

Considerations for the Audit & Governance Committee

Members of the Committee may want to consider the following:

 Does the detailed internal audit plan for the coming financial year (see Appendix D) 
reflect the areas that the Audit & Governance Committee believe should be 
covered as priority?

 Does the updated Internal Audit Strategy (see Appendix B) explain how the internal 
audit service will be delivered and how it links to the Council’s organisational 
objectives and priorities?

 Does the Internal Audit Charter (see Appendix C) clearly set out the scope and 
responsibilities of the Internal Audit service? 

 Does the audit plan include all those areas that the Audit Committee would expect 
to be subject to internal audit coverage, both in terms of our professional 
responsibilities as well as covering areas of concern flagged by management and 
Members?

 Is the level of audit resource accepted by the Committee and agreed as 
appropriate, given the level of assurance required?

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of The Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2016.

Financial Implications
The Audit & Governance Committee should ensure there are sufficient resources for 
the completion of the audit plan.

Human Resources Implications
The Senior Solicitor, the Head of Paid Services, the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
and the Governance Manager have been consulted on the arrangements. Devon Audit 
Partnership would look to continue the arrangement to assign an auditor to be the key 
auditor for the Authority, although specialist auditors will be used as required. 

Sustainability Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
Internal audit will aim to support equality and diversity considerations through its 
recommendations to management

Risk Management
The audit plan has been developed taking into account the risks and risk management 
arrangements across the Authority. 

Page 87



Compliance with Policies and Strategies
CIPFA guidance, IIA standards and the Audit Strategy 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, chair of the Audit & Governance Committee, has commented 
that “Internal Audit is a key service and our decision to join DAP as a full partner is a 
sensible and natural next step for the Council, providing both Value for Money and 
provides the required level of assurance of the control processes across the Council’s 
services.” 

4. CONCLUSIONS
The risk based audit plan for 2017/18 has been developed based on 182 audit days 
from Devon Audit Partnership, and support from the Governance Team (approximately 
60 days). DAP will provide the Annual Opinion for consideration at the July 2017 
Committee meeting. 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Members are recommended to:

 Approve the Internal Audit Plan
 Note and agree the Internal Audit Strategy
 Note and agree the Internal Audit Charter

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Head of Paid Service
Governance Manager
Strategic Management Team
Grant Thornton – Mark Bartlett
Devon Audit Partnership
Chair of Audit & Governance

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer

Background Papers: Audit Files
Internal Audit Strategy (Appendix B)
Internal Audit Charter (Appendix C)

Page 88



Appendix A
Risk Evaluation Levels

Risk Maturity 
Level

Characteristics of risk management 
arrangements Internal Audit Approach

Risk Naïve No formal approach developed for risk 
management

Promote risk management, advisory work 
to help put the risk management 
framework in place.  

Rely on internal audit’s assessment of risk 
to drive the internal audit plan.

Risk Aware Scattered silo based approach to risk 
management 

Promote embedded and joined up risk 
management activities.  

Rely on internal audit’s assessment of risk 
to drive the internal audit plan. 

Risk Defined Strategy and policies in place and 
communicated.  Risk appetite defined 

Facilitate risk management/liaise with risk 
management.  Review of risk 
management processes already in place.

Internal Audit relies on management’s 
assessment of risk, but will also identify 
other risk areas for internal audit 
coverage. 

Risk Managed 

Enterprise wide approach to risk 
management developed and 
communicated.

Risk management is considered at the 
highest level of the business, but could 
be further developed to inform decision 
making. 

Depending on the Council’s attitude to risk 
management, provide advice and support 
to move to a risk enabled organisation.  
Audit existing risk management processes 
to confirm effectiveness.

Management’s assessment of risk drives 
the audit plan, although internal audit will 
continue to challenge whether there are 
other risks that require internal audit 
coverage.

Risk Enabled 

Risk management and internal control 
fully embedded into the operations.

Risk management is used to help 
manage the business; consequently the 
business is able to take risks on an 
informed basis to achieve its objectives. 

Audit risk management processes to 
confirm effectiveness.

Management’s assessment of risk drives 
the audit plan, although internal audit will 
continue challenge whether there are 
other risks that require internal audit 
coverage.

Based on the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditor’s Risk Evaluation Levels

Page 89



Appendix B

Internal Audit Strategy

2015 – 2018

INTRODUCTION
Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 
and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing 
a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, 
control and governance processes.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) set the mandatory standards for 
internal audit services provided to local authorities the requirements for the provision of an Internal Audit 
service in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2016. These are also encompassed in 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

The PSIAS requires the Council to produce an Audit Strategy. This is a high level statement of how the 
internal audit service should be delivered and developed in accordance with the terms of reference and 
how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities.

The purpose of the strategy is to communicate the contribution that Internal Audit makes to the 
organisation and includes the following:

a) Internal Audit objectives and outcomes
b) How the Annual Audit Opinion on the control environment to support the Annual Governance 

Statement will be formed and evidenced
c) How Internal Audit’s work will identify and address significant areas of risk
d) How the service will be provided and performance monitored
e) The resources and skills to deliver the strategy

OBJECTIVES AND OUTCOMES
Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 
and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing 
a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, 
control and governance processes.

The core work of Internal Audit is derived from the Council’s statutory responsibility under the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2016 to ensure the financial management is adequate and effective and that the 
Council has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and 
includes arrangements for the management of risk.

An Audit Plan is created annually, and approved by the Audit & Governance Committee to ensure that 
objectives are met in a risk-based, structured manner. 

Key challenges include:
 Continuing to promote the improvement of systems and procedures to enhance the services 

against a background of reducing resources and transformational change
 Continuing the good relationship with our external auditor to gain the Council maximum benefits 

and eliminate where possible any duplication of effort 

Page 90



 To provide advice and guidance on changes to controls, on risk management issues and 
governance

 To investigate any irregularity or fraud and corruption matter
 Maximising efficiencies within the audit service while still undertaking sufficient work to provide 

the annual opinion.

Outcomes:
 Delivery of the Audit Plan for the Authority, taking into account necessary changes for unplanned 

work /revised priorities
 Provision of annual opinion and assurance on the risk, governance and control systems
 Delivery of reports to the Audit & Governance Committee and other Members as agreed
 Provision of clear, concise and meaningful reports to management covering areas reviewed, 

which encourage them to take action where recommendations have been made
 Provision of advice and consultancy on control, risk and governance processes
 Professional investigation of any cases of suspected financial irregularity, fraud or corruption, 

involving employees (except Benefit Fraud investigations which would be undertaken jointly), in 
accordance with agreed procedures

 Latest technology used where appropriate (such as Idea software so that assurance can be 
given over whole data areas rather than sample testing which can only provide limited assurance 
and also for internal data matching exercises). 

OPINION ON INTERNAL CONTROL
The role of Internal Audit is to understand the key risks to the Council and to examine and evaluate the 
adequacy and effectiveness of its systems of risk management, governance and internal control and to 
provide an annual opinion to the Audit & Governance Committee on those.

To achieve the above the service operates within professional standards and uses a risk based 
approach for both planning and where possible auditing to ensure the audit resource is directed to the 
appropriate activities. The control environment for each activity reviewed by internal audit is then 
assessed for its adequacy and is assigned an assurance rating which is reported to the Audit & 
Governance Committee and is subsequently used to inform the annual audit opinion. The progress 
against the Audit Plan is monitored by the Service Improvement Officer and Head of Paid Service and is 
reported periodically to the Audit & Governance Committee.

The function also audits the Annual Governance work including the review of the assurance statements 
provided by each member of the Strategic Management Team (SMT) about the effectiveness of control 
within their service area and also assesses the Council’s risk management and corporate governance 
framework. 
 
Finally, the Service Improvement Officer will maintain an overview and report on any waivers to Financial 
and Contract Procedure Rules and any suspected and proven fraud, corruption or improprieties so they 
are evaluated for the purposes of the annual assurance statement.

NEW AND EMERGING RISKS
The annual audit planning process ensures that new or emerging risks are identified and considered. 
The Governance Team obtains audit risk assessments from all members of SMT to identify any issues 
and risks inherent to their service areas and asks them to identify any potential areas of concern for 
audit review in the forthcoming year. The corporate risk register and corporate risk map is also examined 
to ensure high scoring risks are taken into account. The audit ‘universe’ and resulting plan are further 
informed by the review of corporate topics and awareness of issues arising from past audits. 

The Audit Plan is approved by the Audit & Governance Committee on an annual basis, however, it is a 
flexible document which can be revised should unforeseen issues arise throughout the year. Such 
adjustments are subsequently reported to the Audit & Governance Committee.

Page 91



We recognise that the audit universe needs to reflect the organisation and as such the Authority is 
currently directed towards delivering the Strategic Plan within the constraints of limited budgets and 
further future budget cuts; and through key contracts for leisure, recycling and grounds maintenance 
contracts. Therefore the Audit Strategy needs to follow this direction and become more focused on the 
wider picture, while retaining sufficient inward facing audit coverage to provide the assurance necessary 
for compliance with the regulations. 

The individual audit projects within the annual plan may be either risk based or systems based work, 
depending on how well established risk management is within the service being audited, and the degree 
of assurance needed on key systems for the annual opinion.

Awareness of national issues is maintained through the CIPFA on-line query service, liaison with our 
External Auditors and through networking with other internal audit colleagues through the Devon Audit 
Partnership and the Devon Audit Group.

PROVISION OF THE SERVICE

The internal audit function is managed by the Governance Manager.

The costs of the internal audit function have been reduced over the past few years and no dedicated 
auditors posts exist in the current establishment. It is not cost effective to work with employment 
agencies for each piece of audit work available and instead the most efficient and effective means of 
using this reduced budget has been to work in partnership with the Devon Audit Partnership who provide 
auditors with relevant experience and good standards of auditing. This arrangement has enabled the 
Council to continue to deliver a wide range of audits and focus on delivering a quality internal audit 
service to the Authority. By joining DAP as a full partner the arrangements with DAP are expected to run 
for a further seven years from 1 April 2017.

An Internal Audit Manual is in place which sets out the Authority’s audit arrangements, processes, 
procedures, standard formats and documents. This is in a format that can be easily and regularly 
updated and Devon Audit Partnership officers have become familiar with these during the past four 
years.

The Service Improvement Officer will monitor service delivery through key performance indicators such 
as achievement of the Audit Plan, customer feedback and ongoing quality assessments for each piece 
of audit work. 

The Internal Audit function will continue to adapt their approach to meet the requirements arising from 
any changing risks or joint working needs.

RESOURCES AND SKILLS
To ensure we continue to provide the most cost-effective service we will need to move towards the risk 
based approach to auditing, but this is only possible where the services being audited have sufficiently 
embedded the risk management approach. Ultimately we are aiming to ensure that the whole audit 
process is risk based so that audits are focussed on areas of most importance and greatest risk to the 
authority. DAP employ a range of auditors (skills and experience) and encourage their auditors to 
develop their skills and knowledge through undertaking various training programmes. 

The Section 151 Officer works with the Governance Team to set an audit budget which will enable the 
Authority to deliver an annual audit plan to provide the necessary level of assurance. 

______________

Page 92



Appendix C

Internal Audit Charter

Internal Audit 
Service March 2016

INTRODUCTION

This document describes the terms of reference, the purpose, authority, and principle responsibilities 
of the Council’s Internal Audit service.

DEFINITION AND OBJECTIVES OF INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting function established within the 
Council that primarily provides an independent and objective opinion to the organisation on the control 
environment comprising risk management, internal control and governance, by evaluating its 
effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and reports 
on the adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and 
effective use of resources. 

Internal Audit will advise management where internal control systems can be improved, and seek to 
promote compliance with corporate policies and procedures, and accomplishment of corporate 
priorities, through its systematic review of the Council’s activities.

AUTHORITY AND STATUS

Internal Audit’s statutory authority is derived from Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2016. 

To be effective, Internal Audit must remain sufficiently independent of the activities it audits to enable 
auditors to perform their duties in a manner, which facilitates impartial and professional judgments 
and recommendations. Internal Auditors must therefore have no operational responsibilities.

The Internal Audit service reports directly to the Head of Paid Service, but also has direct access to 
and freedom to report, the Audit & Governance Committee.

The Head of Paid Service and Internal Audit staff will have unrestricted access at any time to such 
records, assets, personnel and premises, including those of partner organisations, as necessary for 
the proper fulfilment of their responsibilities. 

Any officer, or member of the Council shall, if required, make available such documents or records 
required for audit purposes and shall supply the auditor with such information and explanation as 
considered necessary for that purpose.

This statutory role and rights of access are recognised and endorsed within the Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules.

Page 93



SCOPE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Senior Managers are responsible for ensuring that internal control arrangements are sufficient to 
address the risks facing their services.

The scope of the Internal Audit service allows for unrestricted coverage of the entire control 
environment for the Council comprising risk management, controls and corporate governance. This 
means that all of the Council’s operations, resources, services and responsibilities are included. 
Where the services are provided through partnership or contract, an assessment will be made as to 
whether Internal Audit staff will undertake assurance work themselves, or may rely on the assurance 
provided by other auditors where this is already in existence.

Internal Audit’s responsibilities include:
 Reviewing, appraising and reporting on the soundness and adequacy of systems of internal 

control, whether operations are being carried out as planned, and corporate priorities being 
met

 Reviewing, appraising and reporting on the reliability and integrity of financial and 
management information, including data quality and performance measurement 

 Assessing and reporting on the extent to which assets and interests are accounted for and 
safeguarded from loss

 Supporting and encouraging improvements in the efficiency, economy and effectiveness of 
services

 Provision of advice on all aspects of risk and control, including interpretation of the Council’s 
Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules

 Advising on control and risk implications of enhancements to existing/new systems
 Promoting and encouraging best practice in Council’s risk management and governance 

processes through review and appraisal of arrangements
 Working in partnership with other bodies to secure robust internal control that protects the 

Council’s interests
 Co-ordinating with the work of external auditors and other review functions where appropriate
 Investigating frauds and irregularities and undertaking other special investigations where 

appropriate

STANDARDS

There is a statutory requirement for Internal Audit to work in accordance with ‘proper audit practices’. 
For this purpose, DAP has adopted the 2013 UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as 
its standards, although it also recognises and adheres to the Institute of Internal Auditors standards 
and its code of ethics for auditors.

INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT

Audit Management is provided by DAP who are responsible for:
 Ensuring that Internal Audit staff operate within current auditing standards and ethical 

standards of the professional bodies of which internal audit are members
 Ensuring that Internal Audit staff have an impartial, unbiased attitude and avoid conflicts of 

interest
 Maintaining a suitably resourced, professional audit staff with sufficient knowledge, skills and 

experience to carry out the Audit Plan
 Providing management and the Audit & Governance Committee with an annual opinion on the 

adequacy of the Council’s control environment

Page 94



The Governance Team are responsible for:
 Developing operational Audit Plans based on an assessment of risk and in consultation with 

senior management; and submission of the Audit Plan to the Audit & Governance Committee 
for approval

 Taking account of the adequacy and outcomes of risk management, performance 
management and other assurance processes when compiling Audit Plans

 Monitoring and reporting to management and the Audit & Governance Committee the results 
of audit activities, and the effectiveness of the actions taken by management to implement 
agreed recommendations

 Reviewing the Council’s governance and risk management arrangements and contributing to 
the review of effectiveness of the control environment and publication of the Annual 
Governance Statement.

RESOURCES

The audit resources will be assessed and determined in the Internal Audit Strategy and Plan each 
year and presented to Audit & Governance Committee for approval.

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

Managing the risk of fraud and corruption is the responsibility of management. Internal Audit 
procedures alone, cannot guarantee that fraud and corruption will be detected. Internal Audit does not 
have responsibility for the prevention or detection of fraud and corruption. Internal Auditors will, 
however, be alert in all their work to the risks and exposures that could provide opportunity for fraud 
or corruption.

Internal Audit will investigate suspected frauds and irregularities where appropriate, and will act upon 
reports received via the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy in accordance with the Anti Fraud, Corruption 
and Bribery Strategy.

The Governance Manager and Senior Finance Officer must be informed of all suspected or detected 
fraud, corruption or improprieties so they may be considered in terms of the adequacy of the relevant 
internal controls, and be evaluated for the annual opinion on the control environment.

AUDIT REPORTING

Internal audit may provide audit services to management in addition to the work set out in the annual 
audit plan. 

Reporting to management will be in the most suitable format for the topic and any control weaknesses 
will be captured and agreed actions monitored. Only those actions which are outstanding and 
designed to address high risks will be brought forward into the Annual Opinion report.  

Most audit assignments will be the subject of formal reports in order to communicate the findings of 
the audit and encourage management to take prompt mitigating action where risks have been 
identified.

Where areas of concern are identified the auditor will promptly issue the working paper setting out the 
concerns and risks for consideration by the relevant manager. Appropriate actions will then be 
discussed and agreed and these will be included in reports according to the risk posed. Risks will be 
assessed using the Council’s risk assessment scoring grid. 

Page 95



Reports will be issued in draft form to the managers responsible for the area under review for 
agreement of the factual accuracy of findings. On receipt of management comments reports will 
be published unless there are actions which can be undertaken within four weeks which will 
improve the audit opinion. If this is the case publication will be held back for up to four weeks.  

If an audit opinion is ‘marginal / satisfactory’ or less the draft report will be submitted to Strategic 
Management Team (SMT) for challenge of the promptness of the agreed actions and to ensure 
adequate resources are available. 

Each report issued will include an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls, risk 
management and governance arrangements of the activity that has been audited. 

The finalised report will be emailed to Members of the Audit & Governance Committee. 
Confidential audit reports will only be provided in part two of the Audit & Governance Committee 
and on request to other Members.

Completion of agreed actions will be monitored through quarterly reports to SMT and Audit & 
Governance Committee. The manager concerned may be required to give an explanation. A 
summary of work undertaken and audit performance information will be provided to Members via 
an Audit Newsletter. 

REVIEW OF THIS CHARTER

This Charter will be reviewed every three years (next review due in March 2019) or sooner if 
material amendments are required.

Page 96



Appendix D

The resultant Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 is set out on the following page.

The audit plan for 2017/18 plan has been created by:

Consideration of the risks identified in the Council’s 
Corporate and Service Risk Registers 

Page 97



2017/18 Internal Audit Plan

Services Date of last 
audit

DAP
Key 

Systems

DAP
Other 

Systems

DAP 
Management

Governance 
Team

Responsible
Officer

Asset Management (inc Register/Terrier) 2012/13 5 Steve Hearse

Council Tax 2016/17 10 Steve Hearse

Creditors 2016/17 10 Steve Hearse

Debtors 2015/16 10 Steve Hearse

Housing Benefit and CTS 2016/17 15 Steve Hearse

ICT 2016/17 15 Steve Hearse

Main Accounting 2016/17 12 Steve Hearse

NNDR 2016/17 10 Steve Hearse

Payroll 2016/17 10 Steve Hearse

Treasury Management 2015/16 5 Steve Hearse

Risk Management 2016/17 7 Steve Hearse

Disabled Facilities Grant 2016/17 2 Steve Hearse

Transforming Torridge Programme / MTFP New 10 Jenny Wallace

Planning 2014/15 15 Jenny Wallace

Community Safety 2012/13 3 Jenny Wallace

Licensing 2014/15 7 Jenny Wallace

Corporate Health & Safety 2011/12 5 Jenny Wallace

Key Performance Indicators 2013/14 5 Jamie Hollis

Governance 2011/12 5 Jamie Hollis

Cemeteries (Quarter 4) 2014/15 5 Jamie Hollis

Monitor DAP/Annual Governance/Follow Up Audit 
Work/NFI/Promote Anti Fraud Culture/Police 
Queries/Investigations/Audit Plan/Audit 
Newsletter/Committee Reports & Meetings/Audit 
Performance Reports

2016/17 60 Jamie Hollis

Quality Control/Audit Managers Opinion/Committee 
Reports and Meetings 2016/17 16 Jamie Hollis

DAP 109 57 16.0
TOTALS 182.0

Page 98



Collaborating to improve services

            An Internal Audit View
Welcome to the third edition of ‘An Internal Audit View’.
In our last bulletin, we reported that we are a collaboration of seven local government Internal Audit Partnerships from across England 
and Wales.  Taken together we partner with 11 County Councils, 9 Unitary Councils, 24 District or Borough Councils, 4 Police 
Authorities, 3 Fire Authorities and numerous other public sector bodies.  Our ability to share benchmarking and best practice continues 
to grow for the benefit of our partner organisations. If we can help you in this way, please do not hesitate to contact your Head of Audit.

 

Organisational Culture – An Effective 
Approach to Ethics

An Internal Audit View     1

Despite evidence of growing corruption and fraud, the local 
government sector is still considered to be well governed by 
many.  The checks and balances put in place, including 
scrutiny, audit and standards committees are seen as 
demonstrating the amount of oversight and control being 
exerted.  But this masks a number of concerns and 
inconsistencies, not helped by the lack of a cohesive and 
transparent approach to expected ethical behaviour from 
Members and staff alike.

The situation is not helped by the inconsistent way local 
councils implement their audit committees. The government 
has consistently failed to provide a compulsory framework 
for audit committees which, despite the efforts of 
organisations like CIPFA in providing excellent guidance, 
councils still ‘do their own thing’ to a large extent.  So, one 
of the obvious guardians of ethical behaviour, the audit 
committee, may not have the ability or status to carry out 
this function. Particularly where no specific ethics 
policy exists.

Things are further compounded by the almost complete 
non-existence of ethical policies in the public sector 
generally.  This is in contrast to the private sector, where 
not only are they common-place but they are seen by 
stakeholders as a significant indicator of a well-run 
organisation – assuming there is evidence that the policy is 
effective and implemented.

Of course local government has some ethical strengths.  
Firstly, virtually every council provides induction for new 

Members.  This includes an overview of the Seven Principles 
of Public Life, which forms the bedrock guidance as to how 
Members should behave.  There are also, usually, whistle-
blowing, anti-bribery and corruption and various other staff 
and Member policies, as well as the constitution, that help to 
provide elements of an ethical framework.  But these are 
rarely, if ever, given the benefit of an over-arching policy.  The 
danger is that without an ethical policy, which is demonstra-
bly supported by both the political leadership and the senior 
leadership team, all these well-meaning initiatives will gather 
dust and never seriously be followed.  Couple that with a 
general lack of follow-up training for Members and staff then 
little heed is likely to be paid to these well-meaning efforts.

Putting a good ethics policy together is not hard, but what 
would you expect to see?  It should be a short document, 

Contents:   Organisation Culture 1      Commercial Opps 2      Transformation 4      3rd Sector Assurance 5      Contacts 6

Page 99

Agenda Item 14



no more than two pages long and attractively presented so 
people will actually read it.  

Areas that should be covered could include:
•  Overview.  A general statement as to the organisations 

position regarding ethics.
•  Who the Policy covers.  Should be explicit about whether 

it covers all staff, Members, suppliers etc.
•  Details of the Policy.  What those affected must do to 

comply.
•  Accountability.  Details who and how alleged  

transgressions will be investigated, who reported to, 
sanctions etc.

It should also cover:
•  A requirement that all those the policy applies to will act 

with honesty and integrity
•  That all persons will declare any actual or potential  

conflicts of interest
•  A commitment that all public filings are complete,  

truthful, accurate, timely and comprehensible
•  That the council will comply with all laws, regulations, 

policies etc.
•  How the ethics policy will be promoted, communicated, 

implemented and measured
•  How concerns can be expressed, without fear of  

retribution

Of course it’s great having a policy, but it’s useless if it’s not 
regularly promoted and demonstrably supported by all  
leaders, elected or appointed.  In particular, the audit  
committee can be a champion of ethical behaviour by:
• Supporting a positive corporate culture
•  Promoting and driving the development of ethical  

policies where they don’t exist

•  Ensuring there is awareness training for staff  
and Members

•  Regularly reviewing, with management, the ethical  
corporate culture to ensure it is being adhered to

•  Ensuring that Internal Audit include ethical testing in their 
audit programs

•  Asking for evidence that everyone in the organisation 
takes ownership for ethical behaviour

•  Ensuring codes of conduct clearly articulate the  
organisation’s expectations of its staff and Members in 
respect of ethical performance and behaviour

•  Requiring that all official policies and procedures accord 
with all appropriate laws and recognised ethical norms

•  Reviewing HR policies to ensure that full and complete 
background checks are carried out on new employees, 
particularly for senior posts

•  Making sure that someone in the organisation has  
specific responsibility for monitoring compliance with 
stated cultural and ethical policies.  Who’s championing 
the cause? 

Finally a good ethical policy, properly implemented, can 
contribute to the success of an organisation and 
demonstrates, to the tax-paying public, that the council is 
doing the right thing. Combining a good policy with 
affirmative action and a positive ‘tone at the top’ will 
provide a bed-rock for success and openness.

If you need help or advice in developing an ethical 
framework for your organisation, speak to your head of 
internal audit.

An Internal Audit View     2

Audit Together - Commercial 
Opportunities 
Introduction 
It is well documented that local authorities face significant funding challenges over the next four years and beyond. 
Additional budget requirements will need to be funded through efficiency savings and income generation. It is in this context 
that we have set out some interesting examples of what other local authorities across the country are doing to maximise 
revenue generation, encourage innovation, improve commercial acumen and become more enterprising.

Payday Loans 
Sheffield City Council has created Sheffield Money to provide payday loans to local residents at lower rates (49.9% to 89.9% 
APR) than commercial providers. Interest on these loans generates an income stream for the Council. None of the Council’s 
money is at risk as Sheffield Money acts as a brokerage for local credit unions and other not-for-profit lenders.

Page 100



An Internal Audit View     3

Recruitment Company 
City of Wolverhampton Council has set up Yoo Recruit Ltd, a recruitment agency wholly owned by the Council which, in 
2015/16, had a turnover of £7.4 million and a net surplus after tax of £230k. It provides temps to the Council and does not 
charge a fee when such workers successfully apply for permanent positions. This saved the Council approximately 
£225k in 2015/16. While the majority of Yoo Recruit’s business is with the Council, it also offers temporary workers to the 
private sector.

Energy Efficiency 
This summer Forest Heath BC announced that it had bought the largest council-owned solar farm in the country. The farm 
benefits from government funding for renewable energy, will provide an income from the sale of the energy it produces for 
years to come, and in time might be used to provide electricity more cheaply to local residents.

Charging for Green Waste 
Three Rivers District Council has recently started charging residents for the collection of green waste, with the Council’s 
own forecasts indicating net income of £276k in the first year, followed by £484k in future years. This assumes that 50% of 
households which had brown bins prior to the introduction of charging would opt into the service.

Advertising 
The Council Advertising Network was launched in May 2014 by co-founders Birmingham City Council and Derby City Council. 
The Council Advertising Network secures advertising space on Council websites, with adverts required to meet a clear set of 
ethical criteria. The fees for the Council Advertising Network are taken out of additional revenue generated by the Council. 
www.counciladvertising.net

Conferencing facilities and renting of office space 
Review the office space occupied by the Council to establish whether or not there is any space that may be suitable for offer 
as meeting/conferencing facilities. This exercise may also identify space which could be rented out as office accommodation 
on a short or medium term basis. At least two Hertfordshire authorities are renting accommodation and training facilities to 
the Hertfordshire Constabulary, as well as other public sector organisations such as the NHS and local colleges.

Decentralised energy networks 
Several councils are at the early stages of creating a decentralised energy network to generate income from selling 
carbon-neutral energy to residents. For example, the London Borough of Sutton plans to invest £4.5 million in the Sutton 
Decentralised Energy Network (SDEN). The Council plans to generate a cumulative cash return of £1.5 million from this 
investment over the next 25 years by taking waste hot water from a local Energy Recovery Facility (EDF) and transporting it 
via insulated pipes into the radiators and floors of a new residential and commercial development nearby. 
https://www.sutton.gov.uk/info/200579/sden

Property development company and development of existing sites 
Hertsmere Borough Council has set up a property development company. As the main shareholder, the Council would receive 
any profit generated as result of its trading operations. 

http://www5.hertsmere.gov.uk/democracy/documents/s34916/Report %20of%20Officers.pdf 

The Council is also developing one of its car park sites to include a hotel and supermarket, whilst retaining the existing car 
parking capacity. Additional income is expected in the form of rental from the hotel and supermarket and business rates 
from the businesses which occupy the new development. The possibility of further car parking capacity would also provide 
new income. 

http://www5.hertsmere.gov.uk/democracy/documents/s35371/Report %20of%20Officers.pdf

Page 101

https://www.sutton.gov.uk/info/200579/sden
http://www5.hertsmere.gov.uk/democracy/documents/s34916/Report %20of%20Officers.pdf 
http://www5.hertsmere.gov.uk/democracy/documents/s35371/Report %20of%20Officers.pdf


An Internal Audit View     4

What is Transformational Change?
Transformational Change is not doing the same with less – 
although this is / will be happening as well; it is not about 
making a few changes behind the scenes, 
changing the roles of a few people, but expecting it to be 
“business as usual” and we trust it will not be the new “buzz 
phrase” that will require you to employ a lot of consultants at 
a very high day rates.

It should be about looking at what you will be doing in (say) 
5 years’ time;  predicting who your clients will be, their 
numbers, where they will be, what they will want and what 
they can afford, and designing your service to meet their 
needs in an effective manner that is within your 
resource envelope.

What are the key changes?  
Each organisation will have its own “long list” but an 
example may be how a council can provide adult social care 
to an increasing elderly population – do you do the same, 
costing the same per head but more overall, or do you look 
at different ways of doing things? – a number of 
organisations are looking at how they can use social 
networks and better IT to support our elderly population. 

Why?
The current financial agenda is a big driver, but it should also 
be about improving your services. Our population is 
changing – your customers want different things – they live 
differently – what we did last century may no longer be 
acceptable.

When and how?
If not now, then you soon will be. But it takes time to 
transform and you need to have the skills to make these 
changes and still do the “day job”?  Are you going to recruit 
someone or a team to do this?  Don’t forget that pretty much 
every organisation in the country is looking at doing this – 
are there enough specialists out there to assist you – or will 
you just pay a lot of money for little return?

You need to make savings – what will the financial return 
be? What is the pay back period? Are you using reserves to 
pump prime? When will they be replenished?
Slippage – it will happen – has the knock on effect been 
considered? 

Assurance
Transformational changes are the “big ticket” items – the 
ongoing success of your organisation may depend on how 
well you deliver transformation.  You will have sound project 
management and project governance, setting out how the 
key milestones are being achieved, how cost is being 
controlled, what is slipping, and what can be done to assist.

In addition Audit Committee members should be getting 
independent assurance that transformational change is on 
track and that the change is delivering on its promises. 

The Audit Committee may wish to ask:-
• What are the key projects?
• Are they on track?
• Will they deliver our saving targets?
• Will they improve our services?
• Are we getting the benefits we expected?

If Transformational Change does not feature in your internal 
audit plan, you may wish to question why not. If you want 
assistance with auditing your “big ticket” projects, please 
talk to your Head of Internal Audit.

Transformational Change

Page 102



An Internal Audit View     5

Local Government & Third Sector 
Collaboration - Assurance

As local government departments seek to 
redesign service delivery models to best 
achieve public value in the face of ongoing 
budget reductions and increased demand, 
more and more are exploring the option of 
collaboration with the ‘Third Sector’ 
building on their many shared 
characteristics and objectives.

Whilst such collaborative initiatives are 
essential to meet public demand during a 
period of ongoing austerity, it is common, 
due largely to such shared values and the 
informality of relationships, that 
complacency can manifest in the build, 
design and durability of governance and 
assurance arrangements.  

It is fully acknowledged that there is a requirement with such 
collaborative initiatives to develop a culture which places 
emphasis on building trust and strong relationships focused 
on achieving shared outcomes and targets and in taking 
informed risks on the understanding that it is essential to 
innovate and transform the way that services are delivered.

However, it is important to remain mindful that risk cannot 
be outsourced and under such collaborative arrangements 
accountability will remain with the local authority, albeit 
without the responsibility for, and direct control of service 
delivery.  

It is therefore essential that any such arrangements both 
existing and considered be underpinned by clear and 
robust mechanisms providing assurance that key risks are 
being identified, effectively managed and shared outcomes 
delivered.

Experience has demonstrated that in the constitution of such 
collaborations governance arrangements remain low on the 
radar, resulting in resource intensive efforts to resolve as and 
when issues arise.

Time invested is establishing a clear assurance process 
at the initiation of collaborative agreements provides clear 
focus, direction and accountability for all stakeholders 
including recipients of the service.

Your internal audit team are professionals in the field of risk, 
governance and control and should be called upon to review 
process and provide advice as appropriate.

Assurance checklist:  

  Clear documented governance 
and reporting arrangements

 Defined roles and 
 responsibilities

  Clear understanding of your risks 
(risk appetite, ownership etc.)

  Assurance mapping and 
considerations of audit work  
to be performed

  Clear and adequate rights of 
access for audit and assurance 
purposes

Page 103



An Internal Audit View     6

Contact details

Gerry Cox 
Chief Executive, 
South West Audit Partnership 
01935 385906 
gerry.cox@southwestaudit.co.uk

Robert Hutchins 
Head of Partnership,
Devon Audit Partnership 
01392 383000 
robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk

Terry Barnett 
Head of Assurance,
Hertfordshire Shared Internal Audit 
Service 01438 845508 
terry.barnett@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Neil Pitman 
Head of Partnership,
Southern Audit Partnership 
01962 845139 
neil.pitman@hants.gov.uk

Max Thomas 
Director and Head of Internal 
Audit, Veritau 
01904 552940 
max.thomas@veritau.co.uk

Russell Banks 
Head of Assurance,
East Sussex County Council on behalf 
of the Orbis Partnership
01273 481447 
russell.banks@eastsussex.gov.uk

Jean Gleave 
Head of Internal Audit,
Salford and Warrington shared service 
01925 442354 
jgleave2@warrington.gov.uk

The group meets quarterly and we circulate periodic bulletins to our Partner organisations with the aim of sharing 
information and best practice.  

We hope that you find the bulletins useful. If you have any comments or feedback on this bulletin or have suggestions for 
future articles then please contact one of the individuals above.

Page 104

mailto:gerry.cox%40southwestaudit.co.uk?subject=
mailto:robert.hutchins%40devonaudit.gov.uk?subject=
mailto:terry.barnett%40hertfordshire.gov.uk?subject=
mailto:neil.pitman%40hants.gov.uk?subject=
mailto:max.thomas%40veritau.co.uk?subject=
mailto:russell.banks%40eastsussex.gov.uk?subject=
mailto:jgleave2%40warrington.gov.uk?subject=


Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Agenda Item

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date
Date: 18th April 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To provide a summary of the audit reports issued to date to enable 
members to discuss any matters they wish to raise.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular summary of the audit reports issued 
to ensure there is opportunity to raise any queries on those reports. 

Where possible Members are encouraged to raise any significant concerns with the Service 
Improvement Officer at the time of issue of the report, however this report gives the 
opportunity for Members as a group to discuss any related matters.

This committee report covers the audit reports issued to date and not previously reported. 

2. REPORT
A summary of those reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A. 

There is one audit to be reported upon: 
 Benefits

There is one outstanding audit relating to the completion of the 2016/17 Internal Audit Plan: Risk 
Management. Testing has been completed and the Audit report will be issued in April 2017. 

3. IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
None.

Financial Implications
None.

Human Resources Implications
None.

Sustainability Implications
None.

Equality/Diversity
None.

Page 105

Agenda Item 15



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Risk Management
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the 
level of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control 
framework. Any agreed actions are evaluated against the corporate risk matrix and the audit 
reports include those risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are 
reported separately and directly to management for them to manage. Progress with 
implementing actions is reported to the Head of Paid Service (or Senior Management Team) and 
to the Audit & Governance committee on a quarterly basis.
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the Audit 
Procedures Manual. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”   

4. CONCLUSIONS
One report has been issued since the meeting in February. The opinion for this audit at the time 
of publication was:

Opinion Audit
‘Good’
(which means minimal risks identified)

Benefits

Opinions range from: Good; Satisfactory; Satisfactory/Good; Satisfactory / Marginal; Marginal / 
Satisfactory; Marginal; Unsatisfactory; and, Unsound.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee are asked to:

Note the report issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals 
relating to the three audits in this report.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Officer - Jenny Wallace; Steve Hearse; Jamie Hollis
Councillors - Philip Hackett

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files

Page 106



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Appendix A
Benefits – Good (13/13 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Previous Audit Opinion (February 2016) – Good (13/13 controls were effective at the time of publishing)

Background

Housing Benefit (HB) is a means tested social security benefit defined in law to help people pay their rent. 
The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) sets HB rates, policy and rules, but the payment of benefits 
is administered by Local Authorities. The DWP then pay the Authority a subsidy to cover the expenditure 
but only provided it has been properly administered. The external auditors Grant Thornton are required to 
independently review the administration controls that support the subsidy calculations but any control 
issues identified may impact on the subsidy paid to the Authority. 

Council Tax Benefit (CTB) was abolished with effect from 31st March 2013 by the Welfare Reform Act 
2012. It has been replaced in the main by a locally set Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS). The Scheme 
was approved by Council on 26th November 2012 and amended the previous CTB as follows:

 Limit Liability to 75%
 Limit Capital cut off threshold to £6,000 (previously £16,000)
 Abolish Second Adult Rebate
 Restrict council tax liability to a maximum liability of a Band D property
 Introduce an Exceptional Hardship Fund with a Policy for its use and administration. 

The Pensioner CTS scheme is nationally set by Central Government and mirrors the previous CTB.

The main aim and objectives of the service is to pay the correct level of benefit / support to the right person 
at the right time. A further aim is to investigate and prevent fraud.
    
Opinion 

Overall we found that 8 controls were good and 5 were satisfactory.  There were a number of areas where 
controls could be strengthened which include data security, claim processing and overpayments.

Management Response

Customer Support Manager - The report and findings are a credit to the benefits team who are 
continually working against a background of ongoing welfare reform.  The last year has been a particularly 
difficult period with reduced resource as a result of vacancy management; in addition, the team also 
provide ongoing support to trainees as well as maintaining their own caseloads. 

See following page for control table:

Page 107



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

BENEFITS - SUMMARY OF MAIN FINDINGS IN RESPECT OF KEY CONTROLS
The table below shows the conclusion derived from the testing of the key controls. 

KEY CONTROL
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Feb 17

M
ar 17

C1. The computer system accurately 
calculates the benefit / support payable and 
parameters have been correctly set

Statutory and discretionary HB/CTS system parameters 
had been input and independently checked in a timely 
way. The test system was used to ensure potential issues 
were identified and mitigated. The system generates an 
event log of parameter changes.

G G

C2. All applications awaiting further 
information or action are monitored to 
ensure none have been left outstanding or 
unresolved

The Benefits Team Leader monitors pending claims 
reports and takes appropriate action where deemed 
necessary.

G G

C3. Reconciliation of council tax scheme 
amounts to the Council Tax system and rent 
allowances to the payments made are 
complete and up to date

Monthly reconciliations ensure HB and CTS payments 
and discounts post correctly between systems. A year end 
journal ensures Hostel Rents are posted to the general 
ledger.

G G

C4. Calculations are checked periodically by 
an independent person to ensure both 
accuracy and adequate verification has been 
obtained. 

Periodic checks of representative samples of assessed 
claims are undertaken by the Monitoring Officer. G G

C5. IT system is secure and backed up at all 
times. Records are secure.

System weaknesses expose the Authority to potential data 
protection breaches. Transfer, storage and retention of 
personal data can be improved.

G G

C6. Satisfactory contingency plan in place in 
the event of an IT failure

There is an adequate Business Continuity Plan in place, 
covering IT failure.

G G

C7. All claims are supported by relevant 
claim form, supporting documentation and 
correspondence 

Sample testing of 20 claims found that assessments were 
supported by all the relevant documentation.

G G

C8. Claim details have been correctly input 
to the system so that benefit / support is 
correctly and promptly calculated. (All claim 
types: IS, JSA, Tax Credit, income, self-
employed, ESA, GC)

Generally claim input was accurate. Testing identified 
some errors in calculation of earnings owing to most 
recent earning information not being used in the 
calculation and self-employed earnings, which resulted in 
claimants being underpaid benefit.

A G

C9. Overpayments are promptly identified, 
and recovery action taken.

Appropriate recovery action has been taken on 
overpayments created in the year.

G G

C10. Effective investigation methods are in 
place to ensure frauds and irregularities are 
identified, investigated and appropriate 
action taken.

Application design discourages fraudulent claims, and 
fraud information provided to the DWP is adequate and 
timely.

G G

C11. Payments are regularly reconciled to 
GL

Monthly reconciliations are carried out by experienced 
system administrators. A printed copy is signed and dated 
and supporting records held.

G G

C12. Access to the system is restricted to 
relevant officers and enforces adequate 
separation of duty

Password controls were effective for the Academy 
system.
Account restrictions are applied where conflicts of interest 
exist.

G G

C13. Overpayments and backdated cases 
are properly coded to ensure the subsidy 
claim will be correct

Testing of a sample of overpayments found that all had 
been classified correctly.

A G

Page 108



Agenda Item
REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Progress with Agreed Actions
Date: 18th April 2017 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide an update on progress with implementing agreed actions.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular report on progress with agreed 
actions. This report is set out at appendix A. 

2. REPORT
A summary of the position as at the 31st March is shown at Appendix A. 

Since the Audit & Governance Committee in November 2016 there have been 13 
internal audit reports issued containing 47 agreed new audit actions. In the same 
period there have been 44 actions completed by management. There was 1 high risk 
audit action (the Cyber Security audit) and the necessary mitigating controls have 
been implemented.

There were 12 internal audit actions due for completion by the end of March 2017 which 
were not completed on time. The responsible officers have been contacted and as a 
result:
- first extensions have been agreed for 6 of the actions;
- second extensions have been requested for 3 audit actions; 
- third extensions have been requested for 2 audit actions;

(see Appendix B for details of audit actions with extended target dates). 
- the remaining action will now be completed in April 2017.  

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
None
Risk Management

Page 109

Agenda Item 16



The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the 
level of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control 
framework where testing has shown risks are not being adequately managed. The agreed 
actions are evaluated using the corporate risk matrix and the audit reports include those 
risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are reported separately and 
directly to management for them to manage. The Internal Audit team report on progress in 
implementing the actions agreed with management to better control high and medium risks. 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the 
Audit Procedures Manual. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Consultation date - Councillor Philip Hackett – April 2017.

4. CONCLUSIONS
Since the A&G meeting in November 2016, 47 new actions have been identified in internal 
audit reports and 44 actions have been completed by management.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Committee are asked to:

 Note the progress with actions in this Quarter

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace
Steve Hearse
Councillor Philip Hackett
Other officers as required

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files

Page 110



Appendix A - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 31st March 2017

Description Medium 
Risk

High                 
Risk Total

Number of scheduled actions on last report (31/10/2016) 23 0 23
Number of new agreed actions this period 47 1 48

Total agreed actions   71  
Actions completed this period 44 1 45
Archive requests this period    
Balance of scheduled actions (31/03/2017)   26

   
Number of actions where target date has been missed   12
    

Number of Scheduled Actions by Service  

Service Area Medium 
Risk

High                 
Risk Total  Due by 

31/03/17
Due by 

30/06/17
Due After 
01/07/17

Accountancy Services 1  1   1  
Commercial 1  1  1   
Customer Services   0     
Governance   0     
Housing Options 2  2   1 1
Human Resources   0     
ICT 6  6   1 5
Legal Services 2  2   1 1
Planning 12  12    5
Property 2  2    2
Regulatory 1  1   1  
Revenues & Benefits 1  1   1  
Safeguarding 4  4    4
Waste & Recycling & Community Safety 1  1    1
Strategic Manager (Services)   0     

Total o/s actions   33  1 6 19

Grant Thornton Action Plan (2016 Audit Findings) 5 Completed 2  3   

3rd Extension Requested        2     

2nd Extension Requested       3           

1st Extension Agreed              6
 
Action not yet delivered          1

P
age 111



Appendix B - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 31st March 2017

First Extension Agreed
Service

Responsible 
Officer Status Audit Action Summary

Complete 
By Comment

Revs & 
Bens

Karina 
Baird

Revised 
Target 
Agreed

Council Tax 
audit 

2016/17
Procedures

Was 
30/12/2016 

Now 
30/06/2017

Procedures on ACS Navigator not up to date. Team Leader contacted ACS Consultancy on 
07/07/2016 to request the procedures be updated, however this does not appear to have been 
actioned. Will follow up and action the changes. Team Leader was off sick and has now retired 
on health grounds. NNDR Team Leader will follow this up and see if it can be resolved but 
we are dependent on ACS.

Housing 
Options

Helen 
Page

Revised 
Target 
Agreed

Housing 
Options 

Audit 
2016/17

Grants 
Scheme

Was 
30/12/2016 

Now 
30/06/2017

The Authority should consider whether non repayable grants to non priority households are 
sustainable, especially in cases where the applicant may be deemed at fault through their own 
actions. The use of loans and the prevention fund, as a prevention tool, is currently under review 
- anecdotal evidence to date suggests that it is more cost effective to loan priority need 
households money, even when the probability of recovery is unlikely, than cover the cost of 
securing temporary accommodation. The scheme was due to go to C&R but the meeting was 
cancelled - is now on the agenda on 31st May 2017. 

Housing 
Options

Helen 
Page

Revised 
Target 
Agreed

Housing 
Options 

Audit 
2016/17

Policy and 
Procedures

Was 
31/03/2017 

Now 
30/09/2017

As a consequence a number of policy and procedure documents are in need of review or 
redevelopment, with existing versions being out of date or in some cases hard to locate, due to 
historical filing methods. Work is already underway to bring many of these documents up to date 
but is it likely to be several months before this is completed and new versions are approved and 
adopted. Policy and procedure documents should be updated, formally approved and logically 
filed where they will be accessible to all relevant staff. Awaiting completion of previous action 
(approval of Committee report) before procedure work can be actioned. 

Safe
guarding

Simon 
Toon

Revised 
Target 
Agreed

Safeguarding 
audit 

2016/17

staff and 
member 
training

Was 
31/03/2017 

Now 
30/09/2017

Training was made available to staff and the Lead Member (Sep 2016) but unfortunately those 
identified were not able to attend due to leave. The HR manger will be asked to arrange further 
training. No further training has been arranged.

ICT James 
Jewell

Revised 
Target 
Agreed

ICT Cyber 
Security 
2016/17

Domain Admin 
Accounts

Was 
31/03/2017 

Now 
30/05/2017

Range of actions relating Domain Admin Accounts.  This was a high risk action but a range of 
measures have been implemented to mitigate the control concerns identified. To further 
improve on the recommendations a security software system has been purchased - 
installation is in April 2017 and it will be fully operational by the end of May 2017

ICT Steve 
Burgess

Revised 
Target 
Agreed

TPO Follow 
up Audit 
2016/17

Scan and Plot 
functionality

Was 
30/12/2016

Now 
29/09/2017

A further issue which has arisen relates to the software itself. Following an ‘upgrade’, the Tree 
Officer is no longer able to filter out TPO’s which are currently being renewed/amended, meaning 
that the visual representation shown on the map is not usable as an accurate depiction of the 
TPO being viewed. This issue has been raised with IDOX but they have yet to provide a 
solution and we are dependent on them for a resolution.

P
age 112

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1019
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=999
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=999
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=995
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=995
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1029
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1029
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1029
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1057
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1057
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1023
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1023


Appendix B - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 31st March 2017

Second Extension Requested
Service

Responsible 
Officer Status Audit Action Summary

Complete 
By Comment

ICT ICT 
Manager

Milestone 
Missed

IT security 
audit 

2016/17

Information 
Management 

Policy

Was  
31/03/2017 

Now 
30/09/2017

The Information Management Policy is overdue for review (October 2015) and has a review 
frequency that does not correspond with the overarching Policy Framework document. The Policy 
should be reviewed and updated as necessary.  This was being completed by ICT Manager 
but will have to wait for new manager to be appointed - low risk as existing policy still fully 
operational

ICT ICT 
Manager

Milestone 
Missed

IT security 
audit 

2016/17
Security Policy

Was  
31/03/2017 

Now 
30/09/2017

Original date 31/12/2016. The Information Security Guidance located on the Intranet has a next 
review date of June 2016, making is slightly overdue. It also has a last review date of June 2014. 
This two year gap does not meet the requirements of the overarching Policy Framework 
document which states that all ICT Policies will be reviewed at least annually. Reliance on out of 
date or inaccurate information could lead to increased exposure to security breaches. The 
guidance document should be reviewed and updated. Consideration should be given to whether 
the Policy Framework requirement for annual review of all ICT Policies could be relaxed. This 
was being completed by ICT Manager but will have to wait for new manager to be 
appointed - low risk as existing policy still fully operational

Property Adrian 
Redwood

Milestone 
Missed

LLPG Audit 
2015/16

Street Name & 
Numbering

Was 
31/03/2017 

Now 
31/03/2018

Original date 31/03/2016. Module owned and licensed by TDC, however, it is not used. The 
module setup needs reviewing and training will be required by IDOX. There will be a financial 
implication. We will review and discuss options with the ICT Service however resources for this 
are limited at present so it will be actioned as a longer term project. Needs resource input from 
Property Team - Josh/Andrew/Jamie to meet and discuss IT priorities for the team. New 
Manager wishes to streamline IT based items, but resources currently fully occupied with 
other higher priority tasks. 

P
age 113

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1010
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1010
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1010
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1009
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=916
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=916


Appendix B - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 31st March 2017

Third Extension Requested
Service

Responsible 
Officer Status Audit Action Summary

Complete 
By Comment

Legal Jamie 
Hollis

Revised 
Target 
Agreed

Data 
Protection 
2014/15

Privacy Within 
Corporate Buildings

Was 
31/3/2017 

Now 
31/3/2018

Originally 31/3/2015. Consideration will be given to whether it is possible to improve 
privacy within corporate buildings for members of the public who wish to discuss 
confidential matters. This will need to be deferred until after the current 
Accommodation Review is complete. Delays to Transformation Torridge 
Programme - this cannot be addressed until office moves have been completed. 
Decision to re-tender has further delayed the office move which is now 
anticipated in March 2017

Elections Jon Walter
Revised 
Target 
Agreed

LLPG Audit 
2015/16

Secondary Address 
Databases

Was 
31/03/2017 

Now 
30/09/2017

Originally 31/03/2016. There are plans to link or integrate several applications during 
the current financial year including Academy and LalPac. No date has been set for 
the linking of the Elections software although this is also intended to be implemented 
at a future date. Elections will be contacted to progress. This action has not been 
done sooner because of changes to staff within Elections over the past 12 
months. It has now commenced and is on hold pending the DCC elections but 
will be completed by end of September. 

To Be Completed before 31st March 2017
Service

Responsible 
Officer Status Audit Action Summary

Complete 
By Comment

Commercial 
& Leisure

Sean 
Kearney

Milestone 
Missed

Building 
Control Audit 
2015/16

Application processing

Was 
30/09/2016 

Now 
31/03/2017

Original Date 31/12/2015. Will require ICT intervention and resource input. CLSM to 
liaise with the Business Transformation Manager on the way forward. Business 
Transformation Manager - Online Full Plans application form is a big piece of work.  
Will need to meet with BC to look at this. Also will need to look at options for pre-
written software rather than making our own. For auto-logging documents in IDOX – 
it is available to do – will need workshop & testing to make happen. Building Control 
Admin (Vicky) has tried this in the past, but had issues with creating folders – we will 
need to revisit. Due to the priorities of the ongoing transformation project, this piece 
of work will need to be viewed as a longer term project. The solution was 
dependent upon the upgrade to IDOX v10 which only happened in October 
2016. ICT can now install the auto-application system (iapply) and this will 
allow the solution to take place - will now be completed in Q4. Good progress 
has been made.  Iapply (electronic application system with automatic 
document upload to IDOX) is set to be rolled out in April 2017 after an initial 
test period.

P
age 114

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=817
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=817
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=915
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=915
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=922


       .

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2017/18

Cycle 1 Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Cycle 4 Cycle 5 Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 8
11/7/2017 22/8/17 5/12/17 17/4/2018

Appointment of External 
Auditor

Appointment of External 
Auditor

Waivers and Non-
compliance with 
Procedure Rules

Annual Governance 
Statement: final review

Code of Corporate 
Governance Draft AGS

Governance

AGS Review of 
Evidence

AGS Review of 
Evidence

AGS Review of 
Evidence

AGS Review of 
Evidence

Audit 
Committee

Effectiveness of Audit 
Committee

Risk 
Management Corporate Risk Register Corporate Risk Register Corporate Risk Register Corporate Risk Register

Audit Manager’s Opinion Managing the risks of 
fraud & corruption

Internal Audit Strategy 
and Plan for 2017/18

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with
Agreed ActionsInternal Audit

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Draft Accounts Presentation & Approval 
of Accounts & AGS

Preparation for the 
2017/18 AccountsAccounts

Update 
report

Update 
report

Update 
report

Governance Training 
(GT & DAP) Audit Findings Report Annual Audit Letter 2017/18 Audit Fee 

Letter

Letter of Representation External Audit Plan
External 
Audit

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately.

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 19



Corporate Assurance Risk Register

March 2017

Contents

Section 1 3 Stage Risk Scoring Process

Brief description of the 3 stage risk scoring process and clarification of each stage

Section 2 Risk Matrix

The matrix used for calculating Risk score.

Section 3 Corporate Assurance Risk Register

- Inherent, Current and Target scores

- Controls and Assurances

- Future Actions and comments.

Torridge District Council’s Corporate Assurance and Risk Register is a best practice template for recording and managing risks. The Council also promotes 
the use of Assurance and Risk Registers for managing risks within service areas which are recorded and managed in service and project plans.

The Risk Register is a management tool where a review and updating process identifies, assesses and manages down the risk to acceptable levels. It 
provides a framework in which problems that may arise and adversely affect the delivery of the Council’s aims and priorities are captured and actions 
instigated to reduce the likelihood and impact of that particular risk.

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 20



Section 1 - Three Stage Risk Scoring Process

Torridge District Council operates a 3 Stage Risk Scoring process as outlined in the Council’s Risk Management Strategy which is available on the Council 
intranet site. The information below offers a brief overview of each stage of the Risk process.

Inherent score – the risk scored with no controls, assurances or actions in place.

Current score – the risk scored with controls, assurances and progressed actions.

Target score – the risk score with controls and assurances in place and linked actions completed.

As controls and assurances are put in place and actions completed the Risk will be more controlled and, therefore, the current score moves towards the 
Target Score.

P
age 117



Section 2 - Risk Matrix

E X A M P L E S OF IMPACT
Reputational Compliance Financial Service Provision / 

Continuity

CORPORATE RISK GRID

 National publication 
(name and shame) by 
external body leading 
to a loss of control 
over the running of 
Council operations 

 Front page of national 
paper

 Facing serious 
penalties or prosecution 
& criticism from 
institutions such as 
Ombudsman, Info. 
Commissioner 

 Customers are treated 
unfairly & suffer 
damage by the Council

 Over £400k 
loss or 
additional 
cost to the 
Council. 

 Service delivery 
affected by over 3 
months. 

 Statutory / critical 
service delivery will 
cease for a period 
of time without any 
effective 
contingency.

High 3 6 9 12

 National or local 
front‐page press article 
leading to a reduced 
ability to affectively 
deliver one or more 
services. 

 National press article

 The Council may face 
criticism and be ordered 
to comply with 
legislation by an 
external body as a 
result of a breach

 Between 
£100k‐£399k 
loss or 
additional 
cost to the 
Council

 Delivery affected 
between 1 & 3 
months. 

 Loss of a 
non‐critical service 
for a significant 
period of time.

Medi
um 2 4 6 8

 Disgruntled local 
groups/ individuals 
possibly leading to 
internal complaints 
with research into the 
causes

 Local press article &/or 
ombudsman enquiry

 The Council may 
commit largely 
undetectable breaches 
in legislation

 Internal procedure 
breaches that could 
have other minor effects 
on reputation, service 
delivery etc.

 Between 
£10k-£99k 
loss or 
additional 
cost to the 
Council.

 Delivery affected 
by up to 1 month.  

 Minor disruption or 
inconvenience to 
service delivery & 
customers. 
(Reduced staffing, 
late opening, temp 
loss of IT).

Low 1 2 3 4

EXAMPLES OF LIKELIHOOD
Low Medium High Very High

Less than 10% 
chance of 
occurrence
Never 
happened 
before
Circumstance 
never 
encountered

10% to 40% 
chance of 
occurrence
Only likely to 
happen once 
every 3 or 
more years
Circumstances 
rarely 
encountered

41% to 75% 
chance of 
occurrence
Likely to happen 
at some point in 
the next 3 years
Circumstances 
occasionally 
encountered

More than 
75% chance of 
occurrence
Regular 
occurrence
Circumstances 
frequently 
encountered

P
age 118



Risk
Title

1. Balanced Budget 

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR1 Risk that inability to deliver savings and a balanced budget will 

result in an in year overspend
Steve Hearse Strategic Financial

Inherent 
risk 

score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – Budget setting process to identify deliverable savings through budget proposal reports to SMT, Members, Scrutiny 

Committee, C&R Committee and Council.  Assurance – Reports to and minutes of meetings.
2. Control – Management oversight of budget monitoring through Quarterly Business Review, Capital Asset Management Working 

Group, Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring report.  Assurance – QBR Report.
3. Control – Leader and Head of Paid Service challenge to Services through SMT.  Assurance – Minutes of meetings.
4. Control – Head of Paid Service challenge to SMT and OMT.  Assurance – Minutes of Team meetings and emails.
5. Control – Budget profiling continually reviewed to ensure accurate forecasting and refined in light of actual spend patterns. 

Assurance – Reports to and minutes of meetings
6. Control – Regular monitoring of overall budget and budget savings through Member and officer Governance arrangements, 

including SMT, Scrutiny, C&R, and Council. Assurance – Minutes of meetings
7. Control - Grant Thornton VFM and Financial Resilience exercise carried out annually provides assurance in the report that the 

Council has robust systems in place and that we are in a strong financial position going forward. Assurance – Grant Thornton 

Current 
risk 

score

I2xL1 
=2

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise opportunities
Action 
Owner

Due 
Date

Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

New1 The Medium Term Financial 
Strategy will be reviewed in 
January / February 2017

Steve 
Hearse

28 
February 

2017
Completed and approved by Full Council 
– 28 February 2017

New 2 Business rates revaluations – to 
evaluate the impact on TDCs 
finances and MTFS

Steve 
Hearse

31 
January 

2017
Completed as far as 2015 valuation list in 
concerned new list from 1 April 2017.

I2xL1 
=2

New 3 NHB consultation – to understand 
the impact of the results of the 
consultation and changes

Steve 
Hearse

31 
January 

2017

Completed & incorporated into 2017-18 
Budget & MTFS.  However, still lack of 
clarity over Planning granted on appeal.

Target 
risk 

score

New 4 Living wage and review of salaries 
– evaluate the impact 

Steve 
Hearse

30 June 
2017

New 5 Going concern evaluation – 
External Audit requirement to 
consider.  Report to A&G

Steve 
Hearse

30 April 
2017

New 6 Successful implementation of the 
Waste & Recycling Project 

Richard 
Haste

30 June 
2018

Approved by Full Council – search for 
Depot underway, which is key component

P
age 119



Risk
Title

2. Human Resource 
Planning

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR2 A draft workforce plan has been developed following the staff 

reduction and management restructure in 2014. The 
Transforming Torridge programme is underway with project 
plans in place. There are a few remaining temporary 
arrangements across the Council and appointments to the new 
roles in the structure are being finalised.

Sarah Ayres Strategic Service Provision
Inherent 

risk 
score

I3xL2 
=6

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)

List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – Management restructure taken place. Individual services complete business plans. Temporary staffing arrangements 

were in place to allow additional time for managers to review services.  Assurance – Approved by relevant committee. Staffing 
arrangements approved via GWAF process. 

2. Control – An outline Workforce Plan has been developed for 2015/16.  Vacancy controls will be maintained. Assurance – All 
vacancies are managed by GWAF process and filling of vacant posts is scrutinised by HRM and HoPS.

Current 
risk 

score

L3xL2 
=6

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate risk 

/ maximise opportunities
Action 
Owner

Due 
Date

Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

New 1 Develop workforce plan Sarah 
Ayres

31 May 
2017 

Draft produced and being updated to 
reflect latest position

Target 
risk 

score

I3xL1 
=3

P
age 120



Risk
Title

3. Reputation of the Council

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR3 Risk that failure to manage and control the Council’s 

actions/activities will result in adverse publicity and 
significantly damage the reputation of the Council.

Jamie Hollis Strategic Reputation
Inherent 

risk 
score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – Progress with business plans is monitored via quarterly business reviews (QBR) and key performance indicators 

(KPI). Assurance – QBR’s and KPI’s reported to SMT and Committees who challenge as appropriate.
2. Control – Properly functioning committees and working groups.  Assurance – Constitution and minutes of meetings
3. Control – Monitoring of all Freedom of Information requests Democratic Services and Communications to assess and anticipate 

appropriate response.  Assurance – Minutes of meetings
4. Control – Monitoring and reporting of Complaints.  Assurance – Ensure learning points and highlight areas of concern.  

Emails to managers and regular reporting of stats to members via bulletin.
5. Control – Monitoring Officer and Standards Committee oversee Cllr behaviour Assurance – Minutes of meetings and 

monitoring officer reports
6. Control – Monitoring information about the Council in the local media.  Assurance – Formal responses to press enquiries 

including  quotations from Councillors. Proactive placing of positive news stories.
7. Control – Property Team oversea major decisions and major projects.  Assurance – Officers are responsible for carrying out 

due diligence and for checking that this has taken place. 

Current 
risk 

score

I3xL1 
=3

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due 
Date

Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

New 1 Oil spill in harbour – officers 
trained three years ago Simon, 
Ricky and Roger Hoad – training 
certificate expires February 2017

Sean 
Kearney

31 
January 

2017

Agreed ST will undertake training as only one day and 
investigate whether SK & JW complete the full four 
day course.  SH to discuss with SA

Target 
risk 

score

I3xL1 
=3

New 2 Harbour plan – out of date and 
needs refreshing

Sean 
Kearney

30 June 
2017?

RH – confirmed plan still usable to a degree, but 
needs updating

P
age 121



Risk
Title

4. Business Continuity

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR4 Risk that following an unforeseen event the Council’s 

business continuity processes are not robust enough to 
enable provision of key services in an emergency.

Jon Walter Strategic Business Continuity
Inherent 

risk 
score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – Corporate Business Continuity Plan.  Assurance – Corporate Business Continuity Plan
2. Control – Service Business Continuity Plans monitored by SMT.  Assurance – Update reports to SMT.
3. Control – Identification and prioritisation of Corporate ICT systems for recovery as part of Business Continuity Plan.  

Assurance – Reviewed annually by ICT Manager.  Monthly monitoring by ICT and by Emergency Planning.
4. Control – ICT System processes and skills in place to re-establish key systems.  Assurance – Regular reports from Business 

Transformation Manager.

Current 
risk 

score

I2xL2 
=4

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due 
Date

Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

New 1 Zurich to undertake a Business 
Continuity review and report

Jon Walter / 
Mike Norton

28 
February 

2017

Awaiting for agreement on changes to review 
on IT aspects

New 2 Arrangements for telephony at 
disaster recovery at Caddsdown

Roger 
Bonaparte

31 July 
2017

Is in plan to be delivered, only 1 quote from 
BT – review and confirm if still on track

Target 
risk 

score
I2xL1 

=2

New 3 Business Continuity Plans – 
review all to ensure up to date 
and need to test to ensure fit for 
purpose

Simon Toon / 
Richard 
Haste

31 June 
2017

Discussion on testing whether Caddsdown is 
fit for purpose if needed due to major incident 
e.g. setting up as temporary office and or 
silver command

P
age 122



Risk
Title

5. Civil Emergencies

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR5 Risk that following an unforeseen event the council cannot 

respond to an emergency and fulfil its statutory duties under 
the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.  Putting the public at risk 
and damage to the Authorities reputation.

Richard Haste Strategic Compliance
Reputation

Inherent 
risk 

score

I3xL3 
=9

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – Corporate Emergency Plan and specific plans in place.  Assurance – Emergency Plans
2. Control – Members of OMT and SMT trained to respond to an emergency.  Assurance – Training provided
3. Control – Member of the Local Resilience Forum.  Multi agency group responsible for ensuring Category 1 duties are fulfilled  

Assurance – Attendance by Waste and Recycling Manager at regular multi agency meetings
4. Control – Out of hour’s standby service operating 24/7.  Assurance – Trained officers duty rota
5. Control – Member of the Northern Devon Responders Forum and Blue Light Forum, when local incidents are discussed and 

planned for.  Assurance – Attendance by Waste and Recycling Manager on a quarterly basis

Current 
risk 

score

I2xL2 
=4

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further 

mitigate risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due Date Comments/update on 
progress

RAG Status

New 1 Training for Members on 
emergency planning and 
dealing with emergencies

Richard Haste 30 June 2017

New 2 Refresher training for OMT / 
SMT on roles of silver officers

Richard Haste 30 June 2017 JW / AR to be given full training 
and OMT refresher

Target 
risk 

score

I2xL1 
=2

P
age 123



Risk
Title

6. Safeguarding children and 
vulnerable adults

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR6 Officers and members of the Authority may not identify and 

report to the MASH any vulnerable adults or children that are 
at risk of abuse as required by the Children’s Act. Putting 
individuals at risk, damage to the Council’s reputation and 
possible financial/legal implications (eg. Baby Peter case)

Steve Hearse Strategic Compliance
Financial

Reputation

Inherent 
risk 

score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control – A Safeguarding Policy has been approved.  Assurance – Approved by Full Council.
2. Control – There is Council representation at Multi Agency Safeguarding and Harm meetings.  Assurance – Meeting minutes.
3. Control – Training has and will take place for Safeguarding Officers.  Assurance – Attendance list.
4. Control – A Lead Safeguarding Officer and deputy have been appointed. A Safeguarding Group has been established.  

Assurance – Lead Safeguarding Officer and Deputy positions have been filled by the Strategic Manager (Resources) and the 
Customer Support Manager. Group includes the HRM and Senior Solicitor to cover Members and Staff

5. Control – 2014-15 s11 Return submitted. Demonstrated compliance with requirements Assurance – Return completed. 
6. Control – Attendance of Devon wide leads meeting by either Head or Deputy 

Current 
risk 

score

I3xL2 
=6

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due Date Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

New 1 Promote Member DBS checks Steve Hearse 31 
December 

2016

Few Members have come forward for 
DBS checks despite reminders.  
Therefore will have to accept risk

Target 
risk 

score

I3xL1 
=3

New 2 Information for staff e.g. flowchart 
on website and card detailing 
actions, contacts and numbers to 
deal with a safeguarding event

Simon Toon 30 
November 

2016
Completed

New 3 Additional training on suicide / 
prevent agenda

Steve Hearse 31 
December 

2016

Awaiting details of training dates for 
Sarah Ayres plus 1 other Manager

New 4 Review and implement standard 
formats for reports to generate 
consistent and clear reporting

Steve Hearse 31 May 
2017

Review and implement standard 
formats for reports to generate 
consistent and clear reporting

New 5 Consultation on Taxi Licensing 
policy – statutory safeguarding 
training

Janet Williams 31 May 
2017

P
age 124



Risk
Title

7. Corporate Manslaughter

Stage 1 - Risk without controls (Inherent risk)
Code Risk - CAUSE, EVENT, EFFECT Risk Owner Risk type Risk category
CR7 Risk that a fatality occurs and the council are found to have 

failed to ensure the safety of staff and/or public resulting in the 
Council being charged with Corporate Manslaughter. This will 
result in financial/legal implications (prosecution and unlimited 
fines). If a prohibition notice is issued it will stop Council 
activities until non-compliance has been rectified. Adverse 
publicity will cause damage to reputation of the Council. Senior 
Officers may also be subject to fines and imprisonment

Head of Paid 
Service/SMT

Strategic Compliance
Financial

Performance
Reputation

Inherent 
risk 

score

I3xL4 
=12

Stage 2 – Risk with Controls and Assurances (Current risk)
List of controls and associated assurances to ensure controls are working
1. Control –The Council has in place health and safety policies and procedures which are reviewed and updated as necessary by 

the Corporate H&S Advisor.  Assurance – Available to view on council intranet site; Corporate Health and Safety Policy last 
reviewed July 2014. Policies are reviewed as a minimum every 3 years. They were last updated April 2012.

2. Control – All services have risk assessments in place. Specific risk assessments for high risk areas such as asbestos and 
legionella.  Assurance – Service managers responsible for undertaking and maintaining risk assessments in their own areas. 
Audits by Corporate H&S Advisor. 

3. Control – All Council Buildings and Public areas are subject to programmed and reactive maintenance. Risk assessments, 
inspections and audits undertaken. Assurance – Budget managed by Property Services, Records maintained. 

4. Control – All fleet vehicles are subject to routine servicing, maintenance and MOT as necessary. Assurance – Maintenance 
and servicing records, vehicle defect reports and subsequent actions recorded.

Current 
risk 

score

I3xL2 
=6

Stage 3 – Further actions to reduce the risk (Target risk)
Code Actions to further mitigate 

risk / maximise 
opportunities

Action 
Owner

Due Date Comments/update on progress RAG 
Status

New 1 Corporate H&S training arranged 
for OMT 

Janet Williams 31 January 
2017

Completed all OMT

Target 
risk 

score

I3xL1 
=3

New 2 All H&S assessments need to be 
updated following training

Janet Williams 31 March 
2017

Revised action date of 30 June 2017

New 3 Organise training for SMT Janet Williams 30 June 
2017

P
age 125



P
age 126



Document is Restricted

Page 127

Agenda Item 22


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Draft Annual Governance Statement
	AGS 2016-17 Draft 1

	7 Review of Governance Evidence - Principle F1
	Appendix A

	8 Changes To Accounting Policies
	9 Going Concern Report
	10 2017/18 Annual Fee Letter
	11 Grant Thornton Update Report
	12 External Audit Plan
	13 Internal Audit Plan
	14 Audit Together Update
	15 Audit Reports Issued to Date
	16 Progress with Agreed Actions
	19 Forward Plan
	20 Corporate Assurance Risk Register - March 2017
	22 Corporate Assurance Risk Register - Part 2 Items - March 2017

